
CITY OF SHOREWOOD MEETING HELD VIRTUALLY
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 7:00P.M.  
MONDAY, MARCH 14, 2022

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, pleasegotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

A. RollCall
MayorLabadie___  

Siakel___  
Johnson___  

Callies___  
Gorham___  

B. ReviewandAdoptAgenda
Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsentAgendaisaseriesofactionswhicharebeingconsideredforadoptionthisevening
underasinglemotion.  Theseitemshavebeenreviewedbycitycouncilandcitystaffandthereshallbenofurtherdiscussionbythe
counciltonightontheConsentAgendaitems.   Anycouncilmemberormemberofcitystaffmayrequestthatanitemberemovedfrom
theConsentAgendaforseparateconsiderationordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybriefconcernsorquestionsbycouncil, wecananswer
thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & AdoptResolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil WorkSession Minutes ofFebruary 28, 2022 Minutes

B. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofFebruary 28, 2022 Minutes

C. Approval oftheVerifiedClaimsList ClaimsList

D. Approve Proposal fromDaveyResource Group Director ofPublicWorksMemo
Resolution 22-025

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR Thisisanopportunityformembersofthepublictobringanitem, whichisnoton
tonight'sagenda, totheattentionofthemayorandcouncil. Whenyouarerecognized, pleaseusetheraiseyourhandfeature.  Please
identifyyourselfbyyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddressfortherecord.  Afterthisintroduction, pleaselimityourcommentsto
threeminutes.  Noactionwillbetakenbythecouncilonthismatter, butthemayororcouncilcouldrequestthatstaffplacethismatter
onafutureagenda. (NoCouncil Actionwillbetaken)    

4. PUBLIC HEARING

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Service Recognition CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
DaraGault – Planning Commission



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page2

6. PARKS

A. ReportbyCommissioner TaueronMarch8, 2022Meeting
ParkCommission Meeting

B.  Christmas LakePublicAccess Ordinance CityAdministrator Memo
Ordinance 586

7. PLANNING

A. ReportbyCommissioner RiedelonMarch1, 2022Meeting DraftMinutes

B. CUPforCollocation ofAntennas onExisting Tower Planning Director Memo
SMJInternational, LLC. (DishWireless) Resolution 22-026
24283Smithtown Road

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Approve PlansandSpecifications andAuthorize Authorization for CityEngineer Memo
Advertisement forBidsforSmithtown Pond, CityProject20-07 Resolution 22-027

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Redistricting: Declare NewPrecinct Boundaries and CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
Polling PlaceLocations Resolution 22-028

B.  Approve LetterofAgreement withIPMInstitute CityAdministrator Memo
Resolution 22-029

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

1. TreeSaleandOrganics Recycling Communications /Recycling Coordinator Memo

B. MayorandCityCouncil

11. ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2022 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Labadie, Siakel, Gorham (arrivedat
6:02P.M.), andCallies; CityAdministrator Lerud;  Planning Director Darling; and
Director ofPublicWorksBrown

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Callies moved, Siakel seconded, approving theagenda aspresented.   

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, andLabadie votedaye. Motion passed 4/0.   

2. ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING STATION PROGRAM

CityAdministrator Lerudexplained thatstaffhadmetwithEnergy Management Solutions about
anocostEVCharging StationProgram.  Hestatedthat following thatmeeting staff felt itwould
beagoodideatoheartheirproposal andgetCouncil direction andintroduced JodyMcDevitt.    

JodyMcDevitt, Energy Management Solutions, gaveanoverviewofEnergy Management
Solutions andtheirNoCost/NoRiskEVCharging Station program.  Henotedthattheyhave
partnered withacompany calledCarbon Solutions Group fortheEVCharging Station program
whoareheadquartered outofChicago, IL.  HegaveanoverviewofthehistoryofEVuseandits
forecasted adoption intothefutureandnotedthateveryautomobile manufacturer isinvesting in
electric vehicles. Heexplained someofthechallenges forproperty owners regarding whenandif
theywanttoinstallEVcharging.  Hegaveabriefsummary oftheirproposed EVCharging
Program andnotedthattheCitywouldnotbeobligated topayapenny foranything because
Carbon Solutions Groupwillcoverallcapitalandoperational costs.  Henoted thattherearetwo
potential revenue streams fortheCitywithamonthly license feeorprofitsharing.  Hestressed
thatthisisawayfortheCitytoofferthisamenity toattractandretainEVdriverswithzerorisk.   
Hereviewed thelow-rateandlong-termapproach andhowtherevenue isgenerated.  Heshowed
somerenderings ofwhatacharging stationmaylooklike.  Hestated thattheCitywillbeableto
giveinputondesign andpossible locations andnotedthattheCity’slocation willbeadded tothe
various driverappssopeoplecanfindthem.  Heclarified thattherereallywillnotbemuchwork
needed fromtheCitybecause Carbon Solutions Group takescareofmosteverything.  Heshared
examples ofothercitiesthattheyhaveworked withandnotedthat itincludes theCityofPlymouth
andNewBrighton.  Hestated that theCityCouncil inChanhassen isconsidering thisattonight’s
meeting.  Hestated thatiftheCitysignedanagreement today, itwouldprobably beaboutsix
months before theywouldbeabletogetcharging stations intheground andnoted thatthereare



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 2of4

someincentive dollars thatgoawayonJuly1, 2022, sotheywouldbetargeting getting
agreements inplacepriortothattimeframe.    

Councilmember Gorham notedthatheassumes thatitwillbeafewyearsbeforeaprofit isturned
andaskedifthere isatypical termproposed intheagreement withtheCity.  Mr. McDevitt stated
CarbonSolutions Grouphasamuch longer-term visionthatlooksatthismarket witha 2030
perspective.  Hestated thattheyknowinmanycasesthattheywillprobably notgoingtomake
money forthefirstfewyears.  Heexplained thatthetermoftheiragreement isforatenyearterm
withtwofiveyearrenewal options.    

MayorLabadie askedifMr. McDevitt hadindicated thattheywouldworkwiththeCityonthe
actual locations ofthecharging stations andwouldbewilling toputtheminmorethanone
location.  Mr.  McDevitt stated thatthiswascorrect.    

Councilmember Gorham askedwhatwasneeded inorder tohaveanultra-fastcharging station.   
Mr. McDevitt stated thatthemajority oftheDCfastchargers andtheultra-fastare480volt, which
wouldessentially needastepuptransformer.  Councilmember Gorham askedhowlong ittakes
fora ‘fast’ charger tochargeavehicle.   

Mr. McDevitt stated thattherearemanyvariables thatgointothatcalculation suchasthetypeof
vehicle, thesizeofthebattery, efficiency ofthevehicle toaccept thecharge, andthestateof
chargeonthebattery.  Hestated thatwhenyouarelookingatLevelTwostations, aroughruleof
thumbwouldbetwotothreehoursandthefasterchargesmayonlytaketwentyminutes.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatheiswondering howtheCitydetermines, going intothe
agreement, whatkindofcharger isneeded toattractpeople.  Hestated thatheisthinking about
acharging stationbeing located inaparkandhowlongtheywould needtobethereinorderto
makeitattractive forthem.  Mr. McDevitt explained thatmostpeople willpulloutoftheirgarage
withafullcharge, pluginatworkandgetacharge, soitmayonlytakethemfifteenminutes tobe
abletopluginduringalacrosse gameandgetenough juicetogethomeagainbecause they
haveessentially been ‘topping off’ throughout theday.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thattherearenotmanycharging stationsavailable upanddown
theHighway 7corridor.  Hestated thattherearevery fewLevelTwoandnoLevelThreestations
andnotedthatiftheCitywaslookingtoattractpeople totakeadvantage ofthechargers, hewould
lookattheLevelThree.  Hestated thatiftheCityislooking toprovide anamenity forpeoplewho
arecoming tousetheparks, whether theyareresidentornon-resident, thenaLevelTwocharger
maywork, butwouldnotbeadrawforothers.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshedoesnothaveaproblem withthis, butwouldaskwhat its
purpose wouldbe.  Sheaskedifitissomething theCitywants toputinasanamenity sopeople
cancharge theircarwhiletheyareatasportsevent, orifthethoughtwastoattractothers.    

Councilmember Johnson notedthathecouldgoeitherwaybutiftheCityislooking toattract
otherswithaLevelThreecharging station, hedidnotfeel thattheCityparkswouldbethecorrect
location forthatpurpose.    

Councilmember Siakelstated itgoesbacktoheroriginal question onwhether theCitywantto
offeritasanamenity oraservice.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 3of4

MayorLabadie notedthattherefewindividuals withtheirhandraisedon-line.  

JayNygaard, 1386RestPointRoad, Orono, notedthathemaybebetterknown asthe ‘Turbine
Guy’ andexplained thatheisagreenenergyguy thatalsosupports limitedgovernment.  He
askedwhytheyareconsidering usingthegovernment toinstallagasstation foranelectric
vehicle.  Henotedthat typically when someone getsagasstation, theybuytheirownland, install
theirownpumps, andthenselltheirgas.  Hestated thatthesepeopleareselling electricity and
making moneyoffofitandaskedwhytheCitywasconsidering doingitwhenitshouldbeaprivate
entity.  Hestated thathefeelstheCitycoulddothingstohelpthatentitysucceed butexplained
thathedidnotfeelthesestations shouldbelocated onCityproperty.  Hestated thathewould
liketoknowwhytheyaregoingafterpublicproperty toprovide profit foraprivate corporation.     

MayorLabadie askedMr. McDevitt toanswer Mr. Nygaard’squestion sincetheydoapproach a
lotofmunicipalities.  Mr. McDevitt stated thatitisanamenity thatbecomes aprivate/public type
ofprogram.  Hestatedthatitseemstoworkbestwhentherearevested parties.  Hestatedthat
thepotential istheretomakealittlerevenue andsavethetaxpayers alittlebitofmoney.  He
stated thatitcomes downtowhether theCitywantstoshow leadership inthetransition toelectric
mobility.  

ScottZerby, 5680Christopher Road, statedthathehas questions thatprobably cannotbe
answered tonight suchasdetails regarding thecontract thattheCitywouldbeconsidering.  He
stated thathesupports thisinitiative andthinksgovernment, inthepast, hashadtheneedtosteer
energy consumption andnotedthatsheseesthisassimilar totheStatebeing involved inethanol
production forgascars.  Henotedthattheamountofspace thiswould takeisminimal sohedoes
notseethisasgivingalotofresources toaprivate entityandseesitmoreastryingtoinspireand
reduce theamountofimpact theyhaveontheenvironment.  Hestated thathewouldbeinsupport
ofthisandwouldagreewithCouncilmember Johnson thattherearenotalotofpowerstations in
thenearby vicinity.    

Councilmember Johnson askedifanyoftheothermunicipalities thatthey havepartnered with
havereplaced anyoftheirCityvehicles withEV.  Mr. McDevitt stated thatPlymouth already had
twoEVintheir fleetandareaddinganadditional threevehicles.  Hestated thatNewBrighton is
planning topurchase someforinspection vehicles andarealso lookingatthepossibility ofvarious
models fortheirpolicedepartment.  HenotedthatLakeville islookingatEVpick-uptrucksso
citiesarecertainly looking toinclude EVintheir fleets.    

Councilmember Gorham asked howtherateisdetermined andadjusted.  Mr. McDevitt stated
thatCarbon Solutions Groupwants tobethelow-costprovider because theyneedthecharging
stations tobeused inorderforthemtogetareturnontheir investment.  Hestated thatwhen
developing therate, theylookatthecommercial tariffofthekilo-watthourrateplusthedemand
charge.    

Councilmember Gorham askedhowtheuserknowshowmuchtheyarebeingcharged. Mr.  
McDevitt stated thattheappwilltellthemtherateandthefee.  Councilmember Gorham stated
thathegenerally likestheideaandfeelsthiswouldbesomething thatisagoodservice forthe
City.  Hestated thathewould liketoseeanRFPforthisandwould liketobeabletoverifythat
theratestheywouldbegettingarecompetitive.    

Mr. McDevitt stated thattheywillnotguarantee aratebecause therearetoomanyvariables, but
wouldhopetheirsigned agreements withPlymouth andNewBrighton wouldeasetheirminds



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 4of4

aboutthecompany andthattheagreement hasbeenvetted.  Hestated thathecouldshare those
agreements withtheCityifthatwouldbehelpful.    

Councilmember Johnson askedwhatdirection staff islooking forfromtheCouncil.  City
Administrator Lerud stated thatstaffwould liketoknowifthisissomething thattheCouncil wants
topursue.  Hestated thathethinks thenextstepwouldbereviewing thedraftcontract.  Hestated
thatiftheCouncilhasaveryspecific desireabout location hethinksCarbonSolutions Group
shouldbeinvitedouttowalktheareaandseewhatmaybepossible.  

Mr. McDevitt stated thattheyusually startbylooking atGoogle Earth images because theyare
abletogetalotofinformation fromthat regarding transformer locations.  Hestatedthatfor
locations thereisalwaysaspecific outclauseforbothparties.  Hestatedthattaking timeand
resources towalkasite inordertosay ‘maybe’ would includealotofvariables andwould also
require working withXcel.    

Councilmember Siakel suggested thattheCouncil direct stafftoputtogether somenextsteps
because therearealotofdetails tobesorted through.    

Therewasaconsensus fromtheCouncil todirectstafftoputtogether somepotential next
stepsforpursuing EVCharging Stations intheCityandbringbackoptions for
consideration.   

MayorLabadie stressed thatthisismerelyadiscussion andnodecision hasbeenmadeand
explained thattheCouncil haveaskedstaff foradditional information.  Shestated thattheyhave
notcommitted theCitytothisproject.    

3. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
February 28, 2022, at6:55P.M.    

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedaye. Motion passed 5/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:01P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  Mayor Labadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; City
Attorney Shepherd; CityAdministrator Lerud; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone;  
Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublic Works
Brown; CityEngineer Budde; andKendra Lindahl, Planning Consultant

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Gorham moved, Siakel seconded, approving theagenda, aspresented.   

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Siakel moved, Gorham seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Minutes ofFebruary 14, 2022

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofFebruary 14, 2022

C. Approval ofthe Verified Claims List

D. Approve 2022 Concession Operation Agreement

E. Approve T-Mobile Lease Amendment East Tower, Adopting RESOLUTION
NO. 22-020, “AResolution Approving aFirst Amendment toWater Tower
Space Agreement withT-Mobile Central, ontheCity’sWater Tower located
at5500 Old Market Road.”  

F. Approve Hiring forPlanning Technician Position

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 2of15

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR
MayorLabadie notedthatshewanted tomakesureeveryone knewthatagenda item7Cwasa
variance application madebyherandherhusband.  Shestated thatshewillturnthemeeting over
toMayorPro-temJohnson forthatitemandwillnotbeparticipating inanyofthediscussion, nor
participating inthevoteforthatparticular item.   

Kristine Sanschagrin, 27725 IslandViewRoad, explained thattheactivity locallyandglobally over
thelastfewweekshasinspiredhertoremind theCityCouncilofthetruthandmakesureresidents
havethefacts.  Shestated thatspreading disinformation causes division andmistrust.  She
explained thatsheandherhusband alongwiththeirneighbors, legallypurchased ataxforfeiture
property whichwasfortyfeetofshoreline onLakeMinnetonka.  Shestated thatamonthafter
theyinstalled theirdock onthatproperty, theCitycitedthemwithacodeviolation because
permanent andfloating dockswereprohibited onempty lots.  Shestated thattheyappealed this
decision because theCityCodedidnotprohibitaseasonal dock.  ShenotedthattheCitywithdrew
thecitation andamended theCodetoeliminate themodifiers ‘permanent’ and ‘floating’ soall
docksareprohibited onempty lots.  Shestated thatin2017, theCitycitedthemunder thenew
Codeandtheyfiledanappeal under thepriorCode language because theyweregrandfathered,  
however theCitydidnotallowfordiscussion, mediation, oravariance request.  Shestated that
aftertheCitydenied theirappeal, theCitycharged themcriminally, which werelaterdropped after
theSupreme CourtsentthecasebacktotheDistrict Court.  TheCityatthattimepursued civil
litigation against themwhich theyarenowawaiting thedecision fromtheCourtofAppeals and
notedthatadecision isexpected sometime inmid-March.  TheCityhasspent tensofthousands
ofdollars charging twofamilies forputtingadockonaproperty where theyhadfollowed theCode.   
Shestated thatshewould liketocontrast herexperience withthatofMayorLabadie’smultiple
Codeviolations forherdock.  Sheoutlined theprocess thusfarforthevariance request andnoted
thattheCityhasreceived nineletters inopposition totherequest, butnoneweremade public
priortoorduring therecent PublicHearing onthisitem.  Sheasked theCouncil whysomecitizens
aretreated differently thanotherswhenitcomes toCodecompliance andwhytheyareallowing
false information tobeusedasevidence ofsupport forMayorLabadie’svariance request.    

Councilmember SiakelnotedthatMatters fromtheFloorareintended forthings thatarenoton
tonight’sagenda.    

Councilmember Johnson agreed andnotedthataskedforguidance fromCityAttorney Shepherd.   
CityAttorney Shepherd confirmed thatMatters fromtheFloorarereserved formatters thatare
notontheagenda fortonight’smeeting.  Hestated thatasmentioned byMayor Labadie, sheis
recusing herself fromthediscussion onitem7.C. andCouncilmember Johnson willbeserving as
Chair’ forthatportionofthemeeting andhecanspeak towhether ornotfurther comment willbe
allowed.    

Councilmember Johnson askediftheCouncil should waitonothercomments until theygettothat
agenda item.  Councilmember Siakelstatedthatshethinks theCouncil shouldmoveonand
reiterated thatMatters fromtheFloor isfordiscussion about things thatarenotontonight’s
agenda.   

4. PUBLIC HEARING

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 3of15

6. PARKS

A. Report byCommissioner Gallivan onFebruary 8, 2022 Park Commission
Meeting

ParkCommission Gallivan gaveabriefoverview oftheFebruary 8, 2022ParkCommission
meeting asoutlined intheminutes.    

7. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Maddy onFebruary 15, 2022 Planning Commission
Meeting

Planning Commission ChairMaddygaveabriefoverview oftheFebruary 15, 2022Planning
Commission meeting asoutlined intheminutes.   

Councilmember Callies commended Planning Commission ChairMaddy forhishandling ofthe
meeting onFebruary 15, 2022.    

B. Request forTime Extension toCorrect Code Violations
Location:  5885 Hillendale Road

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisitemwascontinued fromtheFebruary 14, 2022
Council meeting toallowstaff timetopreparearesolution approving therequest foradditional
thirtydaysinordertocorrect Codeviolations.   

Callies moved, Siakel seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-014, “AResolution
Approving aRequest foranExtension toCorrect ACode Violation forProperty Located at
5885 Hillendale Road.”   

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  

C. Variances forDock
Applicant:  Jennifer and David Labadie
Location:  5510 Howards Point Road

MayorLabadie reiterated thatshewouldnotbepresiding over thismatter orparticipating inany
ofthediscussion.  Sheexplained thatMayorPro-TemJohnson wouldbehandling thisitemuntil
itsconclusion andshewillresume participating inthemeetingwithAgenda item #8.  

MayorPro-TemJohnson explained thatasmentioned byPlanning Commission ChairMaddy, the
staffreportwillbepresented byPlanning Consultant, Kendra LindahlandnotCitystaff.  

Kendra Lindahl explained thattherearetwovariance requests forproperty located at5510
Howards PointRoad.  Thefirstisforavariance toallowadockgreater thanfourfeetwideand
thesecond istoallowthedocktobranchoutwithineight feetoftheOrdinary HighWater (OHW)  
level.  Shemadenotof twotypographic errors thathavenowbeencorrected thatwere included
inthestaffreport.  Shereviewed photographs oftheexisting condition andadrawing ofthedock
configuration.  Sheexplained thatthePlanning Commission reviewed thisatapublicmeeting on
February 15, 2022wherenineresidents spokeandwereamixtureofthoseinsupport andthose



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 4of15

inopposition.  Sheexplained thatwritten comments received before themeeting, weresent to
theCommission andwereentered intotherecord.  ShenotedthatthePlanning Commission had
voted4-0torecommend approval ofthevariance requests.  Shestated thatnoticeoftherequest
wassenttoallproperty owners within fivehundred feetoftheproperty andexplained thattheCity
received fifteenlettersande-mails regarding thisrequest.  Shenotedthatmanyofthecomments
wereunrelated tothefactsofthevariance requests andexplained thattheCouncil mustreview
thevariance thatisinfrontofthemandnootheroptions.  Sheshared somebackground
information regarding thedockwhichwasinstalled onorbeforeAprilof1985.  In1989, the
property ownersatthattime, nottheapplicants, obtained aMNDNR permit todredge thechannel
toprovideaccess totheupper lake.  Shenotedthatin2000theexisting homewasdemolished
andanewhomewasbuilt, alsonotbytheapplicant.  Shestated thatthecurrent ordinance was
adopted in2006andtheproperty waspurchased bytheapplicant in2010.  Theapplicants were
notifiedofthedockviolation inOctober of2021.  Shestatedthatasaresultofthisnotice, they
submitted thevariance requests thatarebeingconsidered.  StaffandthePlanning Commission
arerecommending approval ofthevariance requests based onthefindings intheattached
resolution.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatthereseemed tobesomeconfusion atthePlanning
Commission andintheapplication astowhether thiswasa ‘grandfathering’ administrative
decision oravariance request.  Hestated thatitiscoming before theCouncil asavariance
request andaskedhowthatdetermination wasmade.    

Ms. Lindahl explained thattheapplicants madeanassertion intheapplication thatitwasalegal
non-conforming structure, butthatwouldhavetobepartofanadministrative appealandthey
missed thatdeadline.  Shestated thatbecause theymissed thatdeadline theychose toproceed
withthe variance requests which isatoolthatcanbeusedtoresolveaCodeenforcement
complaint.    

Councilmember Gorham asked howthedeadline works.  Ms. Lindahl stated thatwithintheCode,  
thereisatimeline inSection 104.03thatrequires theapplicant tosubmitanappeal under the
grandfather’ clausewithinacertainnumberofdays.  CityAttorney Shepherd stated thathe
believes itiswithin fourteen days.  Councilmember Gorham stated thattheapplicants hadmissed
thedeadline fortheadministrative appealandaskediftherewasadecision madethattheywould
beappealing.    

Ms. Lindahl explained thattoherknowledge, therewasnot, butnotedthatshewasnotinvolved
atthattime.  Shestated whenshewasbrought onboard, theappeal period hadpassed andit
wasproceeding asavariance application.    

CityAttorney Shepherd explained thatthedecision theywouldhavebeenappealing wastheCode
violation andwouldhavebeenrelated totheassertion thattherewasalawfulnon-conforming
usethatwouldnegate theCodeviolation.  Hestated thatthereareassertions ofthatincluded in
theapplication, butthetimeframe foranadministrative appeal isshorter andtheapplicant missed
thedeadline toappealsothiswasprocessed bystaffasavariance application.    

MayorPro-TemJohnson statedthatoverthepastweek, hehadcommunicated withCity
Administrator Lerudtoensure thatallCouncilmembers hadthevideoofthePlanning Commission
meeting madeavailable tothemorhadbeenpresent forthediscussion.  Allcouncil members
indicated theyhadwatched themeeting videoorwerepresentatthemeeting.  Hestated thatthe



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 5of15

Council willopenthisitemupforpublic comments butasked thatthecomments bekepttospecific
tothevariance request infrontoftheCouncil andthatcomments bekepttounder threeminutes.    

Councilmember Callies stated thattherehasbeenapublichearing onthisitemandtheentire
Council hasbeenabletowatchthepublichearing andhavealsoreadallthecomments thatare
attached inthepacket.  Shestated thatshedidnotfeelliketheCouncil needed totakeadditional
public inputonthismatter.  Shestated thatshefeelsthismatterhasbeenthoroughly vetted.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatsheagreed withCouncilmember Calliesandwould request
thattheCouncil nottakeadditional publiccomment onthisitem.  Shestated thatshecannot
imagine thatthecomments willbemuchdifferent thanwhathasalreadybeenpresented.  She
stated thatthisisanopportunity fortheCityCouncil toconduct thebusiness oftheCouncil.  She
stated thatthisitemhashadaPublic Hearingandeveryone washeardandgivenample timeto
share their input.  Shestated thattheentireCouncil haseitherhadtheopportunity toparticipate,  
sitinandlisten, orwatch therecording ofthePublicHearing thatwasheldatthePlanning
Commission meeting.  Shestated thatsheisnotsuretheCouncil willgainmuchmoreoutof
rehashing whathasalready beenpresented.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathethinks thatnormally thatapproach isagoodwayto
proceed, butthisitemisultra-sensitive.  Councilmember Siakel stated thattheCouncil shouldnot
betreating thisanydifferently thantheywould foranybody else.  Shereiterated thattheyarehere
toconduct thebusiness oftheCityCouncil andnottorehash things thathavealready beengiven
andthecommunity hashadtheopportunity tospeakonthisitemalready.    

Councilmember Calliesgavetheexample ofthelastCouncilmeeting where theywere
considering Strawberry Lane, theydidnottakeadditional publiccomment because theyhad
already hadseveral meetings andthis, toher, seemssimilar.  Councilmember Gorham stated
thathewoulddisagree withthatassertion.    

MayorPro-TemJohnson stated thattheCouncil hadoneindividual during theMatters fromthe
Floorportionofthemeeting andtheCouncil indicated thathewouldbegiventheopportunity to
speakduring theagenda item.   Hestated thathewould liketoallowthat individual tohaveafew
minutes, ifhehadanynew, pertinent, information tosharewiththeCouncil, that theydonot
already haveinthepacket.   

Councilmember Gorham stated thathefeelstheStrawberry Laneissuewasbeaten todeathwith
multiple PublicHearings.  Hestated thathethinks thatthisfeelslikeanimportant issuewhere
theCouncil shouldhearfromresidents.  Councilmembers Siakel andCallies stated thatthey
disagreed.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thatitisaccurate thatonavariance application, theCouncil does
notneedtoallowpubliccomment, noristhereaPublicHearing requirement withinStatestatute
atthePlanning Commission level.  Hestated thattheCityCodeallows forandrequires public
comment atthePlanning Commission level.  Hestated thatthePlanning Commission took
extensive publiccomment onthisapplication which itappears thatalloftheCouncilhasseen.   
Hestated thatwiththatsaid, aspointed outbyMayorPro-TemJohnson, anindividual wastold
thathewouldbeabletomakecomment laterontheagenda andhewouldsuggest thatthe
Council atleastgivethatindividual theabilitytomakeaquickcomment ontherecord.  Hestated
thattheCouncil could thenproceed withnottaking anyfurtherpublic comments other thanthis
individual which wouldbeconsistent withCodeandState law.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 6of15

MayorPro-TemJohnson askedCouncilmember Gorhamifhewouldbecomfortable withthat
approach. Councilmember Gorham stated thathewouldnotbecomfortable withthatapproach
andstated thathebelieves therearepeopleheretospeak andhewouldnotmindasking some
followupquestions ontheir letters.  Hestated thateventhough theCouncil hastherightto
approach itthatway, itdoesnotmakeitagoodidea.    

MayorPro-TemJohnson stated thatwhathedoesnotwanttohavehappen isjustacomplete
rehash ofthelastmeeting andnotedthatisnotfairtotheindividuals whoarewaiting forthefuture
agenda items.  

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshedidnotbelieve this individual wasatthePlanning
Commission meeting, soshedoesnotobject togiving himtheopportunity forinput, butfeelsthe
restwouldberedundant andtheir inputhasalreadybeenheard.    

MayorPro-TemJohnson asked thatMr. GregLarsonbegiventheopportunity toaddress the
Council butaskedhimtokeephiscomments briefandspecific tothevariance requests infront
oftheCouncil.   

GregLarson, 25535Orchard Circle, statedthatheisneither fororagainst thisvariance request.   
Heexplained thathewouldarguethattheCityshouldnotbeinthelakeordinance business atall
andwouldhelptheCouncil avoidadecision thatwillresult inaccusations ofhypocrisy and
favoritism.  Hestated thatheisasking thatthese lawsberescinded.  Henotedthatin2016,  
Councilmember Calliesgavewell-reasoned arguments onwhytheCityshouldscrap lake
ordinances entirely, inalettershewrote totheCity.  Attheconclusions ofthelettershestated,  
TheCity’sZoningOrdinances stopattheshoreline.” Henoted thathebelieves thatwasgood

advice in2016andisgoodadvicetoday.  Hestated thatMayorLabadie alsoseemstoagree that
these lawsareunneeded andnotedthatthereasons behind thevariance requests aresobroad
thattheyapply toeverydockonthelake.  Hestatedthatanordinance inwhicheverybody is, by
precedent, allowedavariance, isanordinance thatneeds tobedumped.  Hestated that ifthe
purposeofthelawistoprotect thelakefromtheincursion ofdocks, hefeltthatcowleftthebarn
yearsago.  Hestated thattossing theseordinances willnotleavethelakeunprotected because
theLakeMinnetonka Conservation District ischarged bythelegislature forregulating thelake
andtheyhaveareputation offairness andalsohastechnical expertise andresources todoso.   
Hestated thathebelieves dumping lakeanddockordinances willsavetheCitymoneyand
explained thattheCityhasspentover $100,000onlegal feesassociated withprosecuting afamily
foranalleged violations thatisnomoreserious thanthisviolation.  Hereiterated hisrequest that
theCityditchthese lawsanddevote theCity’sresources todoingrealCitybusiness suchas
plowing snow, fixingpotholes, andenforcing speeding orreckless driving laws.  Hestated thatit
appears asthough theCityisonone-handspending morethan $100,000toenforce thislawon
onefamilyandtwisting themselves inknots inanattempt tojustifyavariance forsomeone else.   
Hestatedthatiftheinconsistencies cannotbeexplained, hefeelsthatmakes hiscase.  Hestated
thatthebestargument forscuttling thisunneeded lawisthatnobodycares ifadockisthreefeet
orfourfeetwideandnotedthatthereareprobably veryfewindividuals whoknowabout thelaw
andmorethanafewarelikely inviolation ofit.  Heasked whyitwasokayfortheCitytowaste
timeandmoney forlawsthatnobody caresabout, donotcontribute tothecommon good, are
expensive toregulate, andunfairly enforced.    

MayorPro-TemJohnson reiterated thathehadasked thatcomments bekeptveryspecific tothe
variance requests before theCouncilandasked thattheconversation comebacktotheCouncil.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 7of15

Councilmember Callies statedthat theletter referenced byMr. Larson, wasoneshewroteasan
individual in2016, andiscompletely unrelated andirrelevant tothecurrent situation.  Shestated
thatshedoesnotknowtheindividual whopresented theletterandiftheyhadlooked intothis
further, theywouldseethatshe, infact, lostthatargument.   Sheclarified thatalthough sheisan
attorney, theletter referenced byMr. Larsonwasnotadvice, norwastheletterwrittenonofficial
attorney letterhead.    

Councilmember Gorham explained thatoneofthereasons hehadaskedaquestion inthe
beginning ofthisdiscussion wasbecause thereisalotofnoiseintheapplication aboutthe
grandfathering’ statusofthedock.  Hestated thathedidnotthinkanyofthatreallymattered and
wanted tofocusthediscussion onthevariance requests inordertoeliminate allthenoise.  He
stated thathewouldliketounderstand abitmoreabout thehardship ofmoving thedockoutand
doesnotunderstand thehardship ofthewidthofthemiddlesection.  Hestated thatitdoesnot
appearasthough theminimum isbeingdone.    

CityAttorney Shepherd statedthatthestandard forthevariance is ‘practical difficulty’ andnot
unduehardship’, whichwasaprevious standard thatisnolonger inplace.  Hestated that
references tounduehardship arenotapplicable.  Councilmember Gorham confirmed thata
practical difficulty cannotbeaneconomic hurdle.  CityAttorney Shepherd agreed that thepractical
difficulty cannotbeprimarily economic.    

MayorPro-TemJohnson explained that, inthiscase, extending thedockwouldgointo
substandard soilsandwouldextend intothedredged areathatallowsother residents togettheir
boatsinandoutofthelagoon.  Councilmember Gorham askedwhere thedredged areawas
located.  Councilmember Siakelstated thatthedredged areaisinthecenterofthelagoon.    

Councilmember Gorham askedwhytheapplicant wouldnotjustmove thesides thatarein
violation upfurther. Ms. Lindahl explained thattheinformation fromthedockexperts thatwas
provided bytheapplicant isthatthelocation oftheslipsthatare near theshoreline islocated
thereduetothesoftshoreline andshifting thosebackinordertomeetthesetback fromOHW,  
willrequire ittobeshifted intounstable soilswhichwouldmakethedockunsafe.    

Jennifer Labadie, applicant, stated thatshethinks thesubstandard soilsaredescribed thoroughly
intheaffidavits thatwereattached tothestaffreport.  Shethattheseweresubmitted bytwodock
experts whohavedecades ofexperience inthedockinstallation andremoval industrywhoboth
stated that, intheiropinion, moving thedockbackwards wouldpotentially compromise thestability
andsafetyofthedock.  Shestated thattheyhavereliedontheirexpertise andexplained that they
hadinstalled anddonerepairwork.  Sheexplained thatthisdockisnotonethataregular person
could install, remove, orperform repairworkonandnotedthatacraneandabargewouldbe
required.      

Councilmember Callies stated thatoneoftheissues thathascomeupisthequestion ofwhether
thisrequest isunusual other thanthattheapplicant happens tobetheMayoroftheCity.  She
stated thattheissueofavariance beingapplied forinresponse toanenforcement actionshe
doesnotbelieve isallthatunusual andasked forinputonthatfromstaffandPlanning
Commission ChairMaddy.   

Ms. Lindahlstated thatthisiscorrect.  Shenotedthatshehasbeenaplanner forthirtyyears ina
number ofcitiesanditisverycommon toapply foravariance totrytoresolveacodeissue.  She



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 8of15

stated thatshecannot speakspecifically tohowfrequently ithasbeendoneinShorewood, but
canstatethatitisatoolthatisveryfrequently usedinothercities.    

Planning Commission ChairMaddy stated thatnineyearsago, thePlanning Commission didnot
givemanyvariances because theywereunder the ‘unduehardship’ State lawsandnotpractical
difficulties.  Hestated thatsincethat time, ithasbeenchanged andtheyhaverecommended
morevariances forsituations likethis.  Hegavetheexample ofavariance thatwasgranted for
thehomebeingtoonarrow according totheCode, butitmadesensetoallowitforthesame
reasons inthiscase, because itisaunique situation.    

Councilmember Siakelagreed thattheCityhasgivenvariances anddoesnotseewhytheCouncil
woulddenythisrequest.  Shestated that ifyoulookatmostofthepeoplewhospoke onthisissue
atthePublicHearing aswellastheindividual whospoke tonight, veryfewoftheircomments
pertained totheissueathand.  Shestated thatmostofthecomments havebeenphilosophical,  
emotional, personal, andtoacertain degree, beenkindofnasty.  Shestated thatmanyofthe
comments areaboutother issues thatarecompletely unrelated tothequestion infrontofthe
Council which iswhether thisrequest meets thepractical difficulty toissueavariance.  Shestated
thatthesoilsareunstable inthelagoonarea, there isadredged channel, andtheywouldhaveto
takethedockoutintoadredged channel whichwould impede traffic foreveryone elseinthearea.   
Shestated that thisissuehasbecome emotional, personal, andappears toberetaliation from
peoplewhodidnotgettheirwayonadifferent issue.  Shestatedthat iftheCouncil istruly looking
atthefactsathandandtherequest, shedoesnotseehowtheCouncil woulddenyitbecause it
meets theStatestatuteofpractical difficulty.    Shesuggested thattheCouncil remove theemotion
fromthequestion thatisinfrontofthem.  Shestated that shebelieves thisrequests meets the
Statestatuteofpractical difficulty.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheagreed andthisistalkingaboutuseoftheproperty ina
reasonable manner.  Shestated thatshefeelsitwouldberidiculous tosaythatthedockhasto
beremoved orthat theycannothaveadockthere.  Shestated thatthecriteria forapproving the
variance havebeensatisfied inthiscase, basedonherreview ofalloftheinformation thathas
beenprovided.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatitseems liketherecouldbeapractical difficulty inthis
situation, butforhim, itisabitunclear astothenatureofthesoilsandwhere theyarewithin the
dockarea.  Hestatedthathewould liketohearfromtheexperts onthisissueandreiterated that
itdoesnotappear thattheminimum hasbeendone.    

Siakel moved, Callies seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-021, “AResolution
Approving Variances foranExisting Dock onProperty Located at5510 Howards Point
Road.”   

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, votedAye. Gorham votedNay.  Labadie
abstained.  Motion passed 3-1-1.  

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Strawberry Lane:  Final Design Direction, City Project 19-05

MayorLabadie returned tothemeeting.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 9of15

CityEngineer Buddegaveapresentation regarding thefinaldesigndirection forStrawberry Lane.   
Hegaveabriefoverview ofthetimeline ofactivity relatedtothisprojectandnotedthatduringthe
in-person OpenHousemeeting inNovember of2021, therewasconsensus foraneedofasix-  
footwidesidewalk against theeastern curb, minimizing impacts toyardsandtreesbyreducing
theproposed streetwidthbytwofeet.  Henoted thatstaff isstillrecommending thetwenty-six
footroadwidth, andshifting thealignment onthesouthend.  Henotedthatthrough themonths
ofMarchandApril, staffwill trytonegotiate fortheeasements inorder toshift thealignment and
plantoreturn totheMay9, 2022Council meeting iftheyareunable tocometoareasonable
negotiation which would require direction fromCouncilonpursuitoftheotheralignment, going
through condemnation, ortoadjust theproject schedule.  Hegaveanoverview oftheproperties
affected bythe alignment andthedifference between aroadway easement anddrainage and
utilityeasements.  Henoted thattheCitywould liketoacquire someroadway easement asakind
ofsight triangle toallowforthecurve radiusoftheroadway atthesouthendofStrawberry, but
thereareotherareasalongthissection whereadrainage andutilityeasement couldbeacquired
ratheraroadway easement.  Heexplained thattherearetwoproperties thathewillneedto
negotiate easements andnotedthathehasreached outtoonewhoseemstobewilling todiscuss
theissue.  Henotedthatfortheotherproperty, hehasbeenabletospeaktosomeoftheproperty
owner’sgrandchildren, butnottheproperty owner.   HenotedthatAlternate 1andAlternate 2
would requireaneasement andiftheywereunwilling tonegotiate couldeventually leadto
condemnation.  Henoted thatinaddition totheproperties hehasmentioned onthesouthside,  
thereareotherproperties thattheCityhastopursue easements andcouldalsopotentially end
incondemnation.  Hestated thatstaffisrecommending proceeding withpursuitofthesixfoot
widesidewalk, atwenty-sixfootwideroadway withcurbandgutter, andwithAlternate 2, which
isthewestern alignment onthesouthendandplantoupdate theCouncilattheirMay9, 2022
meeting forfinaldirection.  Hestated thattheresolution wasnotworded asprecisely ashewould
likeandsuggested alanguage change, deleting thelastsentence ofthelast ‘whereas’ andthe
final ‘whereas’ wouldbetostateitthat ifcondemnation isrequired, staffshallprovide anupdate
onthefinalalignment oftheareasouthofLakeMinnetonka TrailbyMay9, 2022.    

Councilmember Callies askedifpursuing thedrainage andutilityeasements ratherthanroadway
easements wasadequate andifitwasagood idea. CityEngineer Buddestated that itisa
compromise andistominimize asmuchoftheimpactaspossible fortheproperty owners.  He
stated thatitisinthebest interestoftheCitytoacquire somepermanent easement andadrainage
andutilityeasement wouldsatisfy thatneedfromtheCity.  Hestated thatifsomething permanent
isnotdone, theCitywould stillneedtemporary easements orrightofentry fromthose property
owners inorder tobeabletoconstruct theproject.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatitisunfortunate because that option, itkindofpitsneighbor
againstneighbor andnotedthatinordertocomplete thisproject, theCitywillhavetoacquire
easements.  Councilmember Siakel thanked CityEngineer Buddeforcoming backwithmore
information fortheCouncil.  Shenotedthatsheiscomfortable withwhathasbeenpresented.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thathisonlyconcern iswhether theCouncil isleaving themselves
enough timeanddoesnotwanttheCitytopaint itself intotheproverbial corner.  Councilmember
Siakelstated thatwashowshefeltinthepast, butisatthepointnowwhereshethinks theCouncil
needs toputsometrust instafftogooutandgetthedetailsdoneinordertopullitalltogether

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatwhatheistryingtodoissetthingsupsotherecouldbetree
removal doneinthefallof2022alongwithsomeutility relocations sothatwhenconstruction



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 10of15

season starts in2023, theCitywillbeabletoreallymakeprogress andgetthisprojectdoneby
thestartofschool.   

TheCouncil discussed theadjusted resolution language andpotential otheradjustments sothey
donotabsolutely commit tothewestern alignment.  

CityEngineer Buddestatedthathisunderstanding isthat theCouncil isdirecting himtopursue
thewestern alignment uptothepointwhere things wouldhavetomovetocondemnation.  He
explained thatifitgetstothatpoint, hewillcomebackbefore theCouncil todiscuss theoptions,  
including pursuitofcondemnation, moving forward withtheeastern alignment, orchanging the
project schedule.   

Siakel moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-022, “AResolution
Providing Final Design Direction forStrawberry Lane, City Project 19-05, with the
adjustments asrecommended byCity Engineer Budde.”   

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  

B. Birch Bluff Road:  Draft Scoping Document and Communication Plan, City
Project 21-01

CityEngineer Budde gaveanupdateontheBirchBluffRoadprojectandreviewed theproject
timeline activities.  Henotedthatthedrainage isfairlychallenging inthisareaandgavean
overview onthestormsewer,  ponding, watermain, street reconstruction, andpossible
sidewalk/trailplans.   Hereviewed thenextstepsofholdingapublic informational meeting inmid- 
MarchorearlyAprilandnoted thatheisalsohappy tomeetwithanyresidents whowould liketo
discuss theproject.  HestatedthatideallystaffwillbebackinfrontoftheCouncil tofinalize the
scoping document inApril, withfinaldesignapproval inmidtolateApril.  Hestated thatstaffhas
createdadocument thathelpstracks theproject process anddecision chartandtheir intent isto
helpmanageexpectations onthedecision timeframes forstaff, Council, andresidents.  Hestated
thatitalsoshareswhat information theyknowandwhat information theydonotknow and
identifies whenresident engagement ismosteffective.    

Councilmember Gorham askedwhat thecurrent streetwidth isforBirchBluffRoad.  CityEngineer
Buddeexplained that itisruralandisabout twenty-twototwenty-four feetwide.  Councilmember
Gorham askedwhystaffwasrecommending twenty-sixfeetinthiscase.  CityEngineer Budde
stated thatitisbeingrecommended formanyofthesamereasons astheyareforStrawberry
Lane.  Hegaveexamples oftryingtoprovide fireandemergency access, thattwenty-sixfeet is
thecurrent standard forroadwidth, allowsabalance andsomeon-streetparking.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatCityEngineer Buddehasbeenveryactive inengaging
residents inbeginning totalkabout thisproject.  Shestatedthatshelivesonthisstreetand
welcomes theseproposed improvements.  Shestated thatanumber ofherneighbors areinfavor
ofCitywaterandtheimprovements thatcomealongwithit.  Sheasked iftherewereareasof
BirchBluffwhere theroadmayhavetobenarrower thantwenty-sixfeetbecause ofthe
topography andgeographical constraints.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thatmeeting status willbediscussed laterontonight’sagenda, on
whether thismeeting wouldbeanin-person eventorvirtual.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 11of15

MayorLabadie askedifCityEngineer Buddepreferred howtheOpenHousemeetings aretobe
heldandifeitherwayhasabenefitordrawback. CityEngineer Buddestated thathefeltthat the
face-to-face meetings helpresidents engage witheachotherabitbetterandismore
neighborhood building.  Henotedthatitalsoseemstohelpcreateaconsensus byhaving people
intheroomtalkingtotheirneighbors.  Councilmember Johnson stated thathefeltthecomments
coming outoftheinperson meeting versus thevirtualmeeting weremuchmorepositive.   

MayorLabadie suggested thattheCouncil tablethisdecision andbringitbackfordiscussion after
item9.C.    

Labadie moved, Siakel seconded totable Agenda Item #8.B. with the intent todiscuss it
later inthe meeting following item #9.C.    

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed

C. Approve Plans forLiftStations 7, 9, and 10and Authorize Advertisement for
Bids, City Projects 20-12and 21-08

PublicWorksDirector Brown explained thattheCityhasthree liftstations thatarebeingcombined
thisyeartobebid.  Heexplained thatthepandemic caused theCitytopostpone workonLift
Stations 10and7.  Hestated thatbecause theywerepostponed, theyendedupincorporating
themintothe2022Capital Improvement Program.  Hegaveabriefoverview ofthelocations of
LiftStations 7, 9, and10andexplained thefunction ofaLiftStation.  HenotedthattheCityhad
received bidsinJulyof2021forLiftStations 7and10, however, theywererejected because they
appeared tobeinflated.  Hestated thattheplansandspecifications havealready beenapproved
forLiftStations7and10, soonlyLiftStation 9needsthatapproval.   

Siakel moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-023, “AResolution
Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorize Bidding for theLiftStations 7, 9, and
10Rehabilitation Project, City Projects 20-12and 21-08.”   

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Accept Quote for Integrated Pest Management Plan

CityAdministrator Lerudexplained thatattheconclusion oftheJanuary 24, 2022worksession,  
theCouncil directed stafftocontact firmstoassist theCityindevelopment ofanIntegrated Pest
Management Plan.  Heexplained thatstaffputtogether anRFQandsentitouttonineentities
andtheCityreceived threequotes.  Staff isrecommending thattheCityaccept thequoteand
alternate quote fromIPMInstitute andnotedthat ifapproved, staffwillbringbackacontract for
consideration atafuturemeeting.    

Councilmember Gorham explained thatoneofthethingshelikedabout thequote fromBolton
andMenkwasthetraining thattheyincluded andtheyappeared toknowtheCitythebest.  He
stated thatiftheCityaccepted IPM, heaskedhowmuch training therewillbe.  Hestated thathe
believes thecritical pieceinmaking thissuccessful istherelationship with theconsultant and
PublicWorks.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 12of15

CityAdministrator Lerudexplained thatpartoftheirproposal isthattheywillcometotheCityand
doanauditofallofoursites.  Hestated thateachsitewillbegraded andfromthatinformation
theywillbringrecommendations.  Hestated thathehasconfidence thatbothDaveyResource
GroupandBoltonandMenkcouldalsodotheworkbutstafffeltthatsincetheyworkwiththeCity
inothercapacities theywanted tokeepthisseparate fromthoseduties.    

Councilmember Gorham askedifIPMwouldcontinually bereporting backtotheCity.  He
explained thathewants tomakesurethatseven yearsfromnowtheCitydoesnothaveanother
lettersaying thatthiswasneverreally implemented.  Hestated thathedoesnotwant tohavea
reportwithnofollowup.  CityAdministrator Lerud assured Councilmember Gorham thattherewill
befollowupanditispartoftheprogram andnotedthathewillhandle things fromtheCityside.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatoneofthethingsshethought wasinteresting fromtheIPM
reportwasthediscussion oftheCity’sgoals intermsofpesticide reduction andconsidering the
trade-offsandcosts.  Shestated thatshethinks this isabalanced approach toachievable goals
andbestmanagement practices.    

CityAdministrator Lerudstated that thelong-termemphasis istominimize and, ifpossible,  
eliminate theuseofsystemics orotherpesticides.    

Callies moved, Johnson seconded, Accepting the quote from IPM Institute foran
Integrated Pest Management Program and direct staff tobring back and agreement toa
future Council meeting.     

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  

MayorLabadie reminded theCouncil thatthebestpractices forpollinators workshop runsMarch
1-3, 2022.  Shenotedthatsheisplanning toattendandcangiveupdates forthosethatareunable
toattend.    

B. COVID Testing Policy

CityAdministrator Lerudexplained thatearlier thisyear, theCouncil directed thataCOVID testing
policybybrought tothismeeting for Council consideration.  Heexplained thatthepolicy included
inthepacketwasdrafted afterreviewing similarpolicies fromseveral largerorganizations.  He
gaveanoverview ofthepolicyandnotedthat, atthistime, staff isrecommending against adopting
thepolicy.  Hestated thattherearefew, ifany, citiesthatarethesizeofShorewood whohavea
testingpolicy inplaceandmany thathavebeenadopted inlargercitieshaveexpired.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshewouldbeinfavorofavaccination requirement asopposed
toatestingpolicy.  Shestated thatsheunderstands theissues thatwereraisedinthememo, but
inhermind, thevaccine isthefirststepintermsofthis, andfeltthat thiswascomingalittle late.   
Shestated thatsheisconcerned abouthowquickly theCitywouldbeabletoactifthesituation
weretochange.  Shestated thatshedoesnotreallyseeapoint indoinganything rightnow.   

Councilmember Siakelstated thatsheagreed withCouncilmember Calliesandagreed thatthis
feelsalittlelate.  CityAdministrator Lerudasked theCouncil iftheywould likestafftocomeback
withapolicythatstatesthissotheCouncil canbereadytoadopt itshould thingschange, rather
thandoingnothing.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 13of15

Therewasconsensus oftheCouncil todirectstafftobringbackthepolicysotheyare
readyifthesituation changes, soitcanbeimplemented morequickly, ifneeded inthe
future.   

C. Review Status ofMeetings

CityAdministrator Lerud stated thatattheJanuary10, 2022meeting theCouncil adopteda
resolution which called formeetings intheCitytobeheldvirtually inresponse totheCOVID-10
Omicron variant.  Heexplained thatresolution willexpireonFebruary 28, 2022 iftheCouncil
takesnofurtheraction.  Hestated thatstaff isrecommending thattheCouncil adoptversion two
oftheproposed resolution thatextends virtualmeetings toMarch5, 2022.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshewouldbeinfavorofleaving virtualmeetings inplace
through themonthofMarch andmovetoin-person meetings beginning inApril.  MayorLabadie
stated thatsheisanxious togetbacktoin-person meetings. Councilmember Gorham stated that
hefeelsthemeetings aremoreeffective inpersonbutwouldsupport beginning theminApril.    

Councilmember Siakel suggested thattheCouncil justsaythatanything thattakesplaceafter
April1, 2022takesplacein-person.  CityAdministrator Lerudstated thatifthisiswhattheCouncil
would liketodo, theywouldbeadopting thesecond resolution butchanging thedatefromMarch
5, 2022toApril1, 2022.    

Siakel moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-024, “AResolution
Resuming In-Person Meetings oftheCity Council and Advisory Commission, with the
effective date changed, asdiscussed toApril 1, 2022”   

CityAttorney Shepherd notedthat therearetwoversions oftheresolution thatwereincluded in
thepacket andsuggested thattheCouncil adopt thefirstversion withthedatechange, as
discussed.    

Amended motion bySiakel, seconded byJohnson, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-024, “A
Resolution Acknowledging the Omicron Variant Surge ofthe COVID-19Health Pandemic
Impacting In-Person Meetings oftheCity Council andAdvisory Commission, with the
effective date amended toApril 1, 2022.”  

Roll Call Vote:  Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  

Item #8.B. Birch Bluff Road:  Draft Scoping Document and Communication Plan, City
Project 21-01 – continued….  

MayorLabadie notedthat iftheCitywants toholdanOpenHouse theynowneedtorespect the
motion thatwasjustmadetobegin in-person meetings starting April1, 2022.  Shestated thatit
couldbeheldvirtually earlier thanthat, butCityEngineer Buddehasstated that, inhisopinion,  
OpenHousemeetings aremoreeffective whendone in-person.  

There was consensus tohold theBirch Bluff Open House onApril 6, 2022.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatattheretreat, theCouncil hadtalkedaboutputting signage up
onproject areasandasked iftheCitywasstillthinking aboutdoing that.  PublicWorksDirector



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 14of15

Brownstated thatheandCityEngineer Buddehavebeentalkingabout those signsandoncethe
frost isoutoftheground, theywillbecomebackwithsignsforCouncil approval whichwillbeput
upforseveral upcoming projects.  Hestated thattheCouncil shouldseeadraftsignattheirnext
meeting.     

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Administrator andStaff

PublicWorks Director Brownstated theyarereadytoplaceanorder forthereviewed Citysigns
thatshows thecensus numbers.  Hestated thattheyhavetalkedaboutgoing backtothestandard
signsthatareseen inmostcommunities thathavethenameofthecityandthepopulation.  He
reviewed thelocations throughout theCitywhere thesesignswillbeplaced.  Hereiterated that
theyaregetting readytomaketheorderandaskediftheCouncil hadanyopinion ontheremoval
ofthetagline.  Hestated thattheCityhasoptedtofollowtheStateguidelines fortheseasonal
weight restrictions andnoted thattheweight restriction mapispostedon-line.    

CityEngineer BuddestatedthattheCityhasheardbackfromtheArmyCorpsofEngineers on
theSmithtown Pondprojectandhaveessentially permitted theproject, whichmeans thatproject
willbecoming before theCouncil sometime inthenextmonth.   

CityClerk/HRDirector Thonestated thattheCouncil hadtabled item8.B. andcontinued, however
theCouncil didnotmakeanother motiononthat itemandasked CityAttorney Shepherd ifa
motion wouldberequired.    

CityAttorney Shepherd statedthatamotionwasnotrequired because itwasaconsensus matter
regarding settingadate.   

CityClerk/HRDirector Thonestated thattheyareinthefinalstages ofredistricting andhave
submitted theproposed plantotheCounty whichwillcomebefore theCouncil onMarch14, 2022.   
Shestated thelegislative districtwassplitsothereisnow45Aand45Bwhichwillrequire theCity
tomakeaprecinct for45B.  Shestatedthattheyarealsoproposing todecrease fromfour
precincts tothreeprecincts.    

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Gorham notedthatheisplanning toattend thepollinators workshop virtually.  He
congratulated theMinnetonka GirlsHockey Teamforfinishing second placeintheState
tournament.    

Councilmember Johnson congratulated theMinnetonka Men’sandWomen’sAlpineSkiing
Teams because theybothwontheState tournament.    

11. ADJOURN

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of
February 28, 2022, at9:21P.M.    

Roll Call Vote: Johnson, Siakel, Callies, Gorham, andLabadie votedAye.  Motion passed.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 28, 2022
Page 15of15

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

































































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-025

ARESOLUTIONTOACCEPTPROPOSALFROM
DAVEYRESOURCEGROUPFOR

PROFESIONALARBORISTSERVICES

WHEREAS, thecityhasanongoing needtohaveprofessional arborist services to
assist intheproper management ofthecity’streecanopy andforestry resources; and

WHEREAS, Davey Resource Group, Inc. hassuccessfully provided saidservices for
thecitypreviously; and

WHEREAS, staffhassolicited anupdated proposal fortheyear2022; and

WHEREAS, Davey Resource Grouphasprovided anupdated service proposal and
staffhasreviewed saidagreement andfound ittobeinorder;  

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
thhereby accepts theproposal provided byDavey Resource Group, Inc. datedMarch14,  

2022.  

ADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this14thdayof
March, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



5A
MEETING

TYPE
Regular

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   Service Recognition:   
Dara Gault, Shorewood Planning Commission

Meeting Date:  Monday, March14, 2022
Prepared by:   Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
Reviewed by:   MarieDarling, Planning Director

Background:  Thecityhasaneedforcitizens toserveonadvisory committees tothecity
council.  Pursuant toShorewood CityCodeChapter 201, theShorewood Planning Commission
wasestablished tobethecityplanning agencyauthorized byMNStatute andisadvisory tothe
CityCouncil.  TheCommission consists offivemembers whomustbecurrent residents of
Shorewood.  Termsofappointment commence onMarch1andterminate onthelastdayof
February andrunforthree (3) years.  ThePlanning Commission shallhavethepowers and
dutiesgiven tocityplanning agencies, generally bylaw, including theauthority toconduct public
hearings.    

Planning Commissioner DaraGaultservedonthePlanning Commission from2019through
2022.  Commissioner Gaultprovided significant perspective onplanning items, code
amendments, andconsistently provided thoughtful feedback.  Staffandcouncil aregrateful for
hisyearsofservice. Commissioner Gaulthasbeenapleasure toworkwith.  Thankyou,  
Commissioner Gault!  

The Shorewood City Council recognizes and expresses appreciation toDara Gault for his
service ontheShorewood Planning Commission and hisdedication tothecommunity.  

NoFormal Action Requested.   

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
healthy environment, asustainable taxbase, andsound financial management through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

6BTitle/Subject:  ChristmasLakePublicAccessOrdinance
Meeting Date: March14, 2022 MEETING
Prepared By:  GregLerud, CityAdministrator TYPE

REGULARReviewed By:  JaredShepherd, CityAttorney

Attachments:   1986Agreement toestablish apublicaccess, 2015cooperative
operation andmaintenance agreement withtheDNR, lakecarrying capacity
information, Christmas Lakeboat launchanalysis, Christmas Lakeboatcensus,  
Ordinance No. 586

Background:  Citystaffhasbeenengaged inwide-ranging discussions with
representatives oftheChristmas LakeHomeowners Association (CLHA) overthelast
yearabout thepublicaccess area.  In1986, thecitysigned thefirstagreement withthe
MNDepartment ofNatural Resources (DNR) tocreate thepublicaccess, andthenin
2015signeda20-yearcooperative operation andmaintenance agreement with the
DNR.  

Thecityisresponsible formaintenance oftheparking lotandsurrounding area, with the
DNRresponsible fortheboat launchandadjoining dock.  Thecityhasalong-term
working relationship with theCLHAonthelanding areaaswellasworking together to
control invasive species.  Shortofthe2015agreement withtheDNR, thecityhasnot
doneanycomprehensive lookatthelanding areatoevaluate changes inthelast35
years.    

Someoftheitemsofthisreview includes evaluating theparking area, drafting an
ordinance fortheboat landing rules, reviewing literature regarding safenumber ofboats
onabodyofwater, increasing available parking inthelanding area, controlling Aquatic
Invasive Species, andworking withChristmas Shores HOAonacquiring property.  

Christmas Lakeis267acres, ofwhich77acresarelittoral (lessthan15feetdeep)  
meaning theareaavailable forrecreational boating useiscloser to200acres. The
CLHAhasexpressed concern about thenumber of “nearmisses” onthelake, aswellas
someactual accidents.  Boating useonChristmas Lakeaschanged sincethe1986
agreement wassigned.  Inaddition toaninitial limitof25horsepowered boats that
expired in1993, increases inthepopularity ofpersonal watercraft suchaskayakers,  
paddleboarders aswellassurfwakeboaters have increased usageonthelake.  

There issome literature (twoexamples areincluded withthismemo) aboutsafe levels
ofboatactivity onlakes.  Density differs depending onthelake, butbothstudies identify

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



theaverage safelevelofboatactivity, forlakeswhere there isavarietyofboating uses,  
likeChristmas Lake, as20to30acresperboat.    

Alsoattached tothememo isacensus forwatercraft ofalltypes “housed” onChristmas
Lake.  The2021count is319.  Additionally, anaccess analysis wasprovided bythe
CLHAforhighusedates.  Therehavealways beenseven vehicle/trailerparking places
inthepublicaccess.  Asyoucanseefromtheanalysis, therearemany dayswhere the
number oflaunches exceed thenumber ofparking places.  Onthose days, boatsare
launched andthenthevehicle leaves andparksatnearby parking lots.  

Thepublic access creates anobligation onthepartofthecitytoprovide access to
Christmas Lakeforthepublic.  However, thataccess shouldnotbeinterpreted as
unlimited access tothelake.  Competing interests suchastheneedtocontrol invasive
species, preserving thelakeecology, aswellasproviding assafeenvironment as
possible forthelakeusersregardless iftheyareinpersonal watercraft, non-motorized
boats, orspeedorwakeboatsshould factor intothenumber ofwatercraft thatcanbe
onthelakeatanygiven time.   

Indeed, thecityhaspreviously recognized thedesire tolimit thenumber ofboats
launching atonetimethrough acouple ofactions; first, theoriginal agreement between
theDNR, City, andCLHAcalled forseven parking spots.  Second, parking was/is
prohibited onMerryLane.  Itwasrecognized thatifaprohibition wasnotdone, overflow
vehicles andtrailers wouldhaveregularly parked onMerryLane.  That initial concern is
nowbeing realized bythenumber oftrailers parking farther awayafter launching.   

Theordinance asproposed would limitaccess tolaunching tothenumber ofparking
spaces available inthelot - seven.  Tothatend, theCLHAhaspaidforinstalling a
remote controlonthegatesotheaccess canbecontrolled during AISinspection hours.   
Theinspectors areatthelanding everydayfrom6:00a.m. to10:00p.m.  Access
outside thosehourswillnotbecontrolled.  Asthelaunch information shows, however,  
most launches willbecovered bythisschedule.  Itisimportant toknowthatifthe
ordinance isadopted, itwillapplyequally toresidents onChristmas Lake.  

Thismatter waspresented totheParksCommission attheirFebruary 8meeting, and
afteradiscussion theyrecommended theCityCouncil approve theordinance.  They
alsorecommended thatthecityaddress concerns fromneighboring properties about
truck/trailers having tobackuponRadisson iftheparking areawasfull.  Staffhas
looked atsignage options thatinclude anelectronic signattheintersection ofRadisson
andMerryLanethatwould informdrivers ofthenumber ofavailable spaces, signage
thatindicates there isacul-de-sacattheendofMerry Lanethatwouldallowtrucksand
trailers toturnaround, andworking with theCLHAonactivating thecamera atthe
landing thatcouldbeviewed online – giving real-timeinformation topotential landing
users.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Minimal additional expenses.  TheCLHAhas
paidformodifications tothegate, andtheinspectors fromWaterfront Restorations, who



perform theboat inspections andcleaning, haveagreed tocontrol access aspartof
theirdutieswhile theyareatthelanding.  

Options:  Thecitycouncil canpasstheordinance aspresented, modify inanyway,  
request staffgather additional information andbringbacktoafuturemeeting, ornot
passtheordinance.  

RecommendedAction:  Ithasbeenover30yearssince thecityhastakena
comprehensive lookatthelanding andhowitfunctions.  Thereview started lastyear
withthevariance torelocate theAIScleaning equipment toprovide anadditional on-site
parking stallandimproved drainage.  Thisproposed ordinance lookstoimprove safety
forthelakeusers, andstaff recommends passage aspresented bysimple majority.  

NextStepsandTimeline: Iftheordinance adopted, theordinance willbepublished,  
andstaffwillcontinue toevaluate signandcommunications options withtheplantobe
implemented before thebusypartoftheboating season.  



































































































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO.  586

ANORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SECTION 902.05, SUBDIVISION 4OFTHECITY
CODE OFORDINANCES, ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS FORTHECHRISTMAS

LAKE BOAT LANDING ANDADJACENT PARKING LOT

TheCityCounciloftheCityofShorewood ordainsasfollows:  

902.05, Subd. 4.  Christmas LakeBoatLanding.  

a. TheChristmas Lakeboatlanding/publicaccessandparkinglot (the “Christmas LakeLanding” or
the “Landing”) shallbeconsideredacityrecreationarea, andsubjecttothegeneral rulesand
regulations ofcityparkandrecreation areas.  

b. Boatslaunched fromCityproperty, including theChristmasLakeLandingmustmeetall
applicable federal, state, andlocallawsandregulations.  

c. Nopersonshallleave, store, abandon, orotherwise causetoremainanyfishhouse, shelter,  
darkhouse, boat, trailerovernight intheChristmas Lakelandingarea, exceptaspermitted in
Sectiong, orbypermission fromtheCityofShorewood.  

d. Parkingisprohibited exceptindesignated parkingspaces, exceptduringlaunching andremoval
ofthewatercraft fromthewater, andexceptwhilewatercraftortrailersarebeinginspectedor
decontaminated foraquatic invasivespecies.  

e. VehiclesmayonlyentertheChristmas Lakelandingareaifthereisadesignated parkingspot
thenavailable inthelandingareaforthevehicle, orthevehicleanditstrailerifthevehicleis
towingatrailer.  Vehicleswithoutatrailermustfirstparkinaspotintendedforvehicleswithout
trailers, ifoneisavailable, thoughtheymayparkinaparkingspotintendedforvehicleswith
trailers, ifnoneareavailable.  

f. Allvehiclesandtrailersmustparkatthelandinginamanner thatdoesnotobstruct the
equipment usedtoinspectordecontaminate watercraft ortrailersforaquatic invasivespecies
ordisruptormakeunreasonably difficult theabilitytoinspectordecontaminate watercraft or
trailers, ortheabilitytolaunchorretrievewatercraft.  Nothinginthisordinance preventsor
limitstheabilitytouse, storeorleaveattheChristmas LakeLandingtrailers, matsorother
equipment usedtoinspectordecontaminate boatsortrailersforaquatic invasivespeciesatthe
landing.    

g. AllbaitdisposedofattheChristmas Lakelandingshallbedisposedofinamanner thatcomplies
withallStateofMinnesota lawsandregulations.    

EffectiveDate.  Thisordinance shallbeeffectiveuponitsadoption andpublication.  



Passedthis ____ dayof _____________, 2022.  

ATTEST JenniferLabadie, Mayor

SandieThone, CityClerk



CITY OF SHOREWOOD COUNCIL CHAMBERS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
TUESDAY, MARCH 1, 2022 7:00P.M.  

DRAFT MINUTES

CALL TOORDER

ChairMaddycalled themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

ROLL CALL

Present: ChairMaddy; Commissioners Eggenberger, Riedel, Huskins andHolker; Planning
Director Darling; and, Council Liaison Siakel

Absent: None

1. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

Commissioner Huskins noted thatonhiscopyoftheagenda heismarked asabsent.   

Planning Director Darling explained thatshethought hewasnotgoingtobeinattendance tonight.   

Riedel moved, Huskins seconded, approving theagenda forMarch 1, 2022, asamended.  
Roll CallVote:  Ayes – all.  Motion passed 5/0.   

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

February 15, 2022

Huskins moved, Riedel seconded, approving thePlanning Commission Meeting Minutes
ofFebruary 15, 2022, aspresented.   
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Eggenberger, Huskins, Riedel, Maddy.  Motion passed 4/0/1 (Holker
abstained).    

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR - NONE

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS
ChairMaddy explained thePlanning Commission iscomprised ofresidents oftheCityof
Shorewood whoareservingasvolunteers ontheCommission. TheCommissioners are
appointed bytheCityCouncil. TheCommission’sroleistohelptheCityCouncil in
determining zoningandplanning issues. OneoftheCommission’sresponsibilities isto
holdpublichearings andtohelpdevelop thefactual record foranapplication andtomake
anon-binding recommendation totheCityCouncil. Therecommendation isadvisory only.  

BRENDA
7A



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page2of12

A. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR
TELECOMMUNICATIONS ANTENNAS
Applicant: SMJ International, LLC forDish Wireless
Location: 24283 Smithtown Road

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisisarequest foraCUPforco-location of
telecommunications antennas ontheexisting tower locatedat24283 Smithtown Road.  Theyare
proposing toaddthreetelecommunication antennas andsixradioreceiving unitsandvarious
otherequipment inatriangular arrayatabout138feetabove theground which isjustalittlehigher
thanmidpoint ofthetower.  Shenotedthat theunusual complication forthisapplication isthat
therearenesting ospreyatthetopofthetowersoanyworkonthetowerneeds tobedoneoutside
ofnestingseason andifthenestwillbedisturbed, theywillneedtoobtainpermits fromtheDNR.   
Sheexplained thatstaff recommends approval, subject totheconditions included inthestaff
report.    

ChairMaddy stated thattheCityhadapproved aCUPforthis inthepastandaskediftherewas
anydifference other thanthedatesonthepaperwork.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatthedifference between thisapplication andtheprevious
application isthattheyareproposing anicebridgebutthatisafairlyminor change.  

Commissioner Riedelaskedaboutscreening oftheequipment atthebase, itsvisibility and
whether staff feltitwassatisfactory.  

Planning Director Darling stated thattheyhavenotproposed anyparticular screening withthis
application.  Sheexplained that theyareproposing toinstall equipment onthenorthside, sofrom
thepark, therearemanymature treesandabuildingbetween theequipment andparkuserswill
be.  Shestated thatthethinks theequipment willbefairly invisible andnotedthattheyhad
previously proposed slatsinthechain linkfencing, butshefindsthosetobealong-term
maintenance issueandtheytendtolookworseafter justafewyears.    

Commissioner Huskins askedabout theportionoftheparcel thatwasbeing leasedforthistower.    

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview ofthesite layoutanduseusingtheaerialphotograph.      

Commissioner Eggenberger askedifthetowerwascurrently beingusedbyanospreypair.   

Planning Director Darling statedthatthetower isusedeveryyearbyosprey thatcome backyear
afteryear.  Shestated thattherewasmaintenance thatoccurred atthetopofthetowerabouta
yearagoandtheydidhavetoobtainapermit fromtheDNRtoremove thenestandcomplete
theirmaintenance.  Shestated thattheosprey camebackandrebuilt thenest, butnotedthatthe
nestisabandoned inwinter.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askediftheCityneeded tobemorespecific on ‘nesting season’ and
askedwhosedefinition wasbeingused.   

Planning Director Darling explained thattheCityusestheDNR’sdefinition fornesting season.   

Commissioner Eggenberger askedabout thebuilding onthesiteandwhat itwasusedfor.   

Planning Director Darlingexplained thatitwasusedforbothstorage andfordetailing carsthat
aresoldonthelot.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page3of12

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathecanremember discussing thefencing during thelast
application.  Henotedthatheunderstands theconcern about slatsnotlooking goodlong-term,  
andrealizes thatperhaps therewillnotbemanypeoplewhowillseethechain linkfence, buthe
thinks itlooksterrible.  Hestated thatitmaybegood thatitcanbeseenthrough, butreiterated
thathedoesn’tthinkthefencing looksgoodandsuggested thatperhaps itwasinneedofanew
one.    

Planning Director Darling statedthatiftheCommission hasissueswiththemaintenance ofthe
fence, shewouldneedtogetincontact withthetowerowner.    

KristinSwenson, SMJInternational, onbehalfofDishWireless, 49030Pontiac Trail, Suite100,  
Wixom, MI, reviewed theirapplication toaccommodate anewwireless carrier thatwillbring
additional options andservices tothecommunity.  Shestated that thisishelpful because many
people havebeengetting ridoftheir landlines andexclusively using wireless services.  Shestated
thattheco-location willnotadversely affect landowners because theantennas arebeingadded
toanexistingstructure.  Shestated thattheyareawareoftheconditions being recommended by
staffandindicated thattheyintend tocomply withthem.    

Commissioner Huskins askediftheexpert inspector hasbeenselected andif, so, couldshe
identify thatpersonorfirm.   

Ms. Swenson explained thattheyhavenotyetbeenselected butsheordered thestatement of
special inspections thismorning andexpects ittobebackwithinaweek.    

ChairMaddyopened thePublicHearing at7:26 P.M. noting theprocedures usedinaPublic
Hearing.  Therebeingnoinput, ChairMaddy closed thePublicTestimony portionofthePublic
Hearing at7:27P.M.  

Commissioner Eggenberger asked thatwhenmaintenance isdone, evenoutsideofnesting
season, thattheapplicant dowhatever theycantonotdisrupt theosprey.    

Riedel moved, Huskins seconded, recommending approval oftheConditional Use Permit
forTelecommunications Antennas, forSMJ International, LLC forDish Wireless at24283
Smithtown Road, subject totheconditions recommended inthestaff report.   

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes - all. Motion passed 5/0.  

Planning Director Darling notedthatthisitemwillbeontheMarch14, 2022CityCouncil agenda.   

B. PUBLIC HEARING – CITY CODE AMENDMENTS FOR URBAN FARM
ANIMALS
Applicant: City ofShorewood
Location: City-wide

Planning Director Darling reviewed theproposed amendments toCityCodeto: addnew
definitions ofenclosures/runsandurbanfarmbirds; addrequirements thaturbanfarmbird
enclosures/runs/shelters mustbefullycovered withnets; greater setback for
enclosures/runs/shelters toincrease distance tosideproperty lines; amend theregulations that
donotneedtoapply torabbitsorbees; andaddameanstorevokeanddenypermits.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page4of12

ChairMaddy askediftheChiefofPolicestillneeds tobethereferenced enforcer sincetheCity
permits andinspects theproperties.    

Planning Director Darling notedthattheyChiefofPolice isnottheenforcer fortheurbanfarm
animals butislistedastheenforcer fortherestoftheanimals.    

ChairMaddy pointed outa fewgrammatical errors thathehadfound including under Section
705.09FarmAnimals, 2.C. theword ‘additional’ shouldbechanged to ‘addition’; andunder2.D.,  
hebelieves ‘animal’ shouldbemadeplural.  Heaskedabout thelanguage usedunderDenialof
Permits relatedtoinspections andwhether itshouldbechanged tomakeitclear thattherewas
notsomething theCitywassupposed todo.    

Planning Director Darling suggested changing thelanguage to, ‘….theapplicant hasnot
requested therequired inspection forthreecalendar months.’    

Commissioner Huskins askediftherewasanylanguage aboutanyminimal sizeproperty that
wouldbeprecluded fromhavingapermit forfarmanimals.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCommission hadasked thatrestriction betakenout.    

Commissioner Riedelexplained thatpartoftheirdiscussion andreason formaking thatchange
wastohaveasetnumber ofanimals, butincrease thesetback.    

Commissioner Huskins askedifthesmallest lotwithintheCitywascapable ofhaving sixurban
farmanimals.   

Planning Director Darling confirmed thatthiswasaccurate.    

Commissioner Holkerstated that inthepriorminutes therewasaconversation about neighboring
citiesandhowclosetheCityistotheirregulations.  Shestated thatPlanning Director Darling had
indicated ithadbeenincluded inapriorpacketbutwouldhavesomeinformation aboutthatat
thismeeting andaskediftherewasanyinformation shecouldsharerelated toneighboring
communities.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatshehadforgotten toinclude thatinformation intheirpackets
butcouldreview theregulations fromothercommunities intheTwinCities.    

Planning Director Darling notedthattheCityhadreceived aletter fromPatrickandJenna
Johnston at25965Smithtown Roadwhoopposed someofthenewregulations including the30
footsetback requirement.    

ChairMaddyopened thePublicHearing at7:45 P.M. noting theprocedures usedinaPublic
Hearing.   

Benton Sellwood, 20775Garden Road, askedifthiswouldrequire thatanyenclosure, suchasa
chicken run, havenettingorabarrieroverthetop.   

Planning Director Darling confirmed thatwaswhatwasbeingproposed.    

Mr. Sellwood explained thathebelieves thatmaybeanissueforsomeenclosures.  Hestated
thathehasneverhadaproblem withhisbirdscoming outandnotedthathehadtriedtoputan
enclosure overthetopwhenhefirstbegan, butitproved tobedifficult forfunctionality and



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page5of12

maintenance andreiterated thathisbirdshavenotgottenout.  Hestated thatinthecasea
predator wouldgetintotheenclosure, hewould likehisbirdstobeabletoatleast trytojumpout
andgetintoatree.  HeaskediftherewasawaythattheCitycouldconsider lookingatthisissue
again.    

Patrick Johnston, 25965Smithtown Road, stated thathesenttheletterearlier todayandwanted
tomakesurethateveryone wasabletoreadit.    

Therewasagreement fromtheCommission thattheyhadreadthelettersubmitted byMr.  
Johnston.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thathewould liketobegindiscussion withtheissueraised bythe
residents andaskediftheCitycouldconsider ‘grandfathering’.  Heaskedforopinions onthe
situation wheretheCommission wasinagreement ona30footsetback, related tograndfathering
inpeoplewhohaveexisting chicken coopsthatwerebuiltwhen10feetwasthesetback
requirement.  Hestated thatthepermithastoberenewed andifthechicken coopwasconsidered
moveable, therewouldbenolegallynon-conforming structures.    

ChairMaddy askedwhatguidance theCityreceived fromlegalcounsel onwhowould makethe
choiceonwhether itwasfixedormoveable coop.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatasitiswrittennow, ifitisastructure that ispermanently
fixedtotheground, thenthosestructures wouldbeconsidered legallynon-conforming andthey
wouldbeallowed tocontinue tohavechickens inthem.    

ChairMaddy askedabout freestanding sheds thataretoobigtoomove.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatwould fallunder thesamesituation, butmoveable hutches
orcoopswouldhavetobemoved.    

ChairMaddy askediftheinspector would makethatdetermination.    

Planning Director Darling stated that theinspector wouldmakethatchoice.  Shestated thatinthe
olderpermits theyhadtogiveadescription oradiagramoftheshelter.    

Commissioner Eggenberger explained thathehadnotthoughtmuchabout thechange from10
feetto30feetuntilhereadMr. Johnston’sletter thisafternoon.  Heaskedwhatthereason was
for30feetasopposed to10feet.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thathebelieves itwastheideaofextending thedistance toavoid
disruption totheneighbors.  Hestated thatitwasaproposed compromise toallowpeopletohave
chickens onsmall lots, butnottobeabletosituate themrightnexttotheproperty lines.  Hestated
thatthereisalsoaprovision thatthechickens havetobecloser toyourownproperty thantoyour
neighbors.    

Planning Director Darlingnotedthat increasing thedistance alsopotentially helpswithsmells
relating towaste thatisnotcleaned up.    

Commissioner Eggenberger pointed outthatdogscanbewithin10feetandaskedhowthatis
different thanurbanfarmanimals.    

Council Liaison Siakelnotedthatmostdogsdonotliveoutside full-timelikeachicken.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page6of12

Commissioner Riedel notedthatdogsarealsomuchmorecommon thanchickens.  Hestated
thathedoesagreethatitdoesseem arbitrary andhavinga30footsetback requirement could
reallyconstrain people.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatheisnotanti-chicken orpro-chicken, butheseesa
dichotomy whereapersoncanputupafencewithmultiple dogswithin10feetoftheproperty
line, butanotherperson whowants tohaveguinea fowlcannot.    

Commissioner Riedelsuggested that30feetmaybeexcessive andsuggested acompromise of
15or20feet.   

ChairMaddy stated thathere-readsomeoftheothercities regulations andwasinterested inthe
possibility ofa10footsetback, butneeded tobe50feetawayfromaneighbors residence.  He
stated thatitwouldnotneedtobethoseexactnumbers, butfeelsthatmaybeaconcept that
wouldwork.    

Commissioner Huskins askedhowmaypermits havebeenissuedorrenewed overthelast5
years.  Heaskedifitwouldbepossible todoapaper studytodetermine howmanyoftheexisting
structures wouldneedtobe ‘grandfathered’.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatshehasalistofallthepermitholders because shesent
themallnoticesofthismeeting.  Shestated thatshebelieves thereareaboutadozenthatare
permitted withchickens andanother5or6thatarekeeping farmanimals without permits.    

Council Liaison Siakelstated thatwhatwaskindofguiding thesechanges werecomplaints
around coops thatwererightontheproperty line, closer totheneighbors property thanthe
chicken owner, chickens escaping, smell, anddisruption.  Shestated thatthereweresomepretty
heated comments fromneighbors thatwere inconvenienced andnothappywithhaving neighbors
thatkeptchickens.  Shestated thatinherneighborhood therearetwofamilies thathavechickens
butnotedshewasnotsureifeitheroneofthemwaspermitted.  Shestated thatshealsobelieves
thatanother reason forhavingwelldefined guidelines thatwere lessambiguous isbecause
chicken keeping isbecoming morepopular.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatoneoftheindividuals thatcomplained wassomeone who
hadchickens onallthreesidesofhisproperty whichhadbeenescaping fromallthreeofthe
properties intohisyardandarethencausing damage.  Hestated thathehasalsobeenworried
thathisdogswillattack thechickens whichwouldcauseaneighborhood incident.    

Council LiaisonSiakelstated thattherewerealsoconcerns aboutpredators coming intothe
neighborhood because ofthechickens andabout theCitynotendinguplikearural farm
community.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisparticular property ownerstated thatthechickens
aregettingoutonaregular basisandtheyscratchupandmovehislandscaping mulchanddig
uptheplants.    

ChairMaddy stated thatheisnotsureasetbackwould address thoseproblems.    

Commissioner Huskins statedthattheregulations fromnearby citiesthatChairMaddy mentioned
withbothasetback andadistance fromaneighboring homecouldbesomething thattheCity



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page7of12

considers, especially sincetheyarenotrecommending alotsizerestriction onhavingurbanfarm
animals.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatwithin thelastamendments thatwerereviewed andadopted,  
therewasachange tothesetbacks such thattheenclosures havetobefarther fromtheadjacent
neighbors home thanthechicken owners home, butitdidnotprovide aspecific distance.    

TheCommission discussed varioussetback regulations andhowtheywould affectvarious sized
lots.    

Commissioner Holkerstated thatitsounds liketherearesomebadchickenowners andaskedif
therewasanytypeofenforcement options, suchasonlybeingallowedacertain numberof
offenses before theirpermit wasrevoked.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheyareproposing somelanguage thatwouldallowtheCity
todenyorrevoke permits forproperty owners thatareadopting pooranimal husbandry, for
example, allowing theirchickens toescape.    

Commissioner Holkeraskedwhowouldmakethatdecision.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwouldusually cometoher, butnoted thatthosedecisions
areappealable totheCityCouncil.    

ChairMaddy suggested a10-footsetback andtherequirement tobe50feetfromtheneighbors
dwelling.    

TheCommission discussed specifics around beingnocloser than10feet fromtheproperty line
withtherequirement tobe50feetfromtheneighbor’shome.     

Council LiaisonSiakelnoted thattoaddress thecomments madeinthelettersentbyMr. Johnston
regarding enclosure thecoops, shefeltsomeofhispoints werevalid.  Sheaskediftherecould
besomething putinthatwiththefirstcomplaint ofchickens escaping theywouldberequiring to
enclose thecoopandasecond violation results inrevocation ofthepermitsothereisan
escalating penalty.  

ChairMaddynotedthatallofhisneighbors whohavechickens havenets, butheisunsure how
muchmoreworkitcreates.    

Council Liaison Siakelstated thatshehastwoneighbors whohavechickens thatroamfreeon
theirproperty anddoesnotbelieve thereisanet.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thathisviewisthattheCityshould simplify enforcement andnot
complicate itandfeelsthesimpler therules, inthissituation, thebetter.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatoneoftheresidents hadstated thatadding anenclosure
wouldbeahassleduetothesnowandleaves.  Hestated thathisthought itthatperhaps that is
thecostofraising chickens.  Hestated thatitmaynotbeideal, butitmaybejustsomething that
theyneedtodoinorder tohavechickens.   

Commissioner Huskins notedthatheagreed thatitbecomes abalance between residents who
donothavechickens buthavebeenbothered bythemandtheresponsibility andaccountability



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page8of12

ofthechicken owner.  Hestatedthathethinkssimplifying theruletorequire netting foreveryone
makessense tohim.    

ChairMaddy reviewed theitems thattheCommission agreed uponfortheamendments tothe
Code.    

TheCommission discussed situations whereurbanfarmanimals owners couldbegrandfathered.    

Riedel moved, Holker seconded, recommending approval ofthe proposed Code
amendments toUrban Farm Animal regulations including; thegrammatical changes as
discussed, aminimum of10foot setback from property lines with 50feet from neighboring
homes andarecloser totheowners home than toanyadjacent neighbor.   
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – all.  Motion passed 5/0.  

Planning Director Darling notedthatthisitemwouldbeinfrontoftheCityCouncil onApril14,  
2022.  

5. NEW BUSINESS

A. Campaign andNon-Commercial Speech SignsDiscussion

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisagenda itemisintended tobeapre-PublicHearing
discussion regarding campaign andnon-commercial speechsigns.  Shestated thatstaffhasput
together somedraft language forthemtoconsider.  ShenotedthattheCommission had
forwarded some potential amendments totheCityCouncil buttheydidnotactonthemand
continued it, indefinitely.  Sheexplained thatanewpublichearing willberequired foranychanges
tothecampaign andnon-commercial speech signs.  Shestated that themainpurpose forhaving
anyamendments isbecause theCityhasanumberofregulations forcampaign signsthat
duplicate andoverlap eachotherandshared examples ofwhereitcanbedifficult todetermine
whenandwhennottoenforce therules.   Shenotedthattheproposed amendments include
addingnewdefinitions; removing thedefinition ofcampaign signs; amending theregulations for
campaign signs including renaming themasnon-commercial signs, clarifying thetimeperiod
whentheyareallowed, clarifying thesetback; andaddingasubstitution clause.    

ChairMaddy stated thatinReedv. TheTownofGilbert ruling, itsaystheCitymaystillregulate
signsonareasonable time, place, andmanner restrictions.  Heaskedwhatthismeantandifit
referred toobscenities.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatissaying thatyoucannot regulate thecontentofthesigns,  
butyoucanregulate where theysit, howlongtheysit, andthewaytheyareinstalled.    

ChairMaddystated thathehashadsomeone contacthimsaying thatobscenities andimplied
obscenities orswearwordsaregetting moreandmorepopular.  Hestated thathewanted to
clarify thattheCitywillnoteventalkabout restricting whatgoesonthesign.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatiftheCitydidthat theywould likelybechallenged with
violation oftheFirstAmendment andwouldbeunsuccessful atdefending themselves.  Shestated
thatshesharestheconcerns about thelackofcivility, ingeneral because oftheincreasing amount
ofanger. However, thereisalinethat theCityhastowalkandthatincludesnothaving regulations
thatarecontentbased.  Shegaveanoverviewofthesuggestions andfeedback madebythe City
Council onthis issue.     



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page9of12

TheCommission discussed primary andgeneral election signs.   

Planning Director Darlingexplained thattheCommission wasonlybeingaskedtohaveanarrow
focusrightnowinordertogetanyamendments adopted priortotheelection season. Shenoted
thattherewillbesomeotherCode amendments needed inthefuture.      

ChairMaddy askedabout theproposed 5-footsetback requirement fromastreetorpaved
roadway inasituation where peoplehavealotofshrubbery rightuptothepavement edgeandif
thatmeant theywouldbedisallowed fromhavingsigns.  Heaskediftheycouldaddacaveat that
itishastobe5feetfromthepaved surface unless there issomething permanently affixed that
wouldbeavisualobstruction topeople forseeingthesign.    

Commissioner Eggenberger expressed concern thatifsomeone wanted toputasigncloser to
thestreet thecould justgoplantalittleshrubsotheycoulddoit.   

ChairMaddystated thattherewouldneedtobesomecaveataboutvisibility butrealized that
therewouldbepeople thatwould tryto ‘game’ thesituation.  Heexplained thathewants toerron
thesideofallowing people toputoutmoresignsrather thanrestricting them.   

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathisbiggestconcern withsignstooclosetotheroadis
kidsandsafety.  

Commissioner Huskins stated thatheisabeliever inpersonal choiceandpartofhimsaysthatif
itisimportant toaresident toputasignout, andtheCityhasareasonable setback code, then
thefactthat theyhaveshrubbery doesnotprevent themfromtakingoutpartoftheshrubbery to
putupasign.  Hestated thatiftheycannotcomply andtheycomplain because thereissome
obstruction intheway, hewouldquestion whether thatistheresponsibility ofthehomeowner to
solvetheproblembyremoving theobstruction.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thattherewillalwaysbeacompromise involved andaskedifthe5
footsetbackwasreasonable.    

Council Liaison Siakelstated thatevenwithasetback of5feet, therearealotofproperties inthe
Citythatwouldnotbeabletocomply with thatandnotedthatinheryard, shewouldhavetotake
outawholehedgeoftrees thatwereinplacewhentheymoved intobeabletocomply.  She
stated thatshedidnotthinkithaseverreallybeenaproblem, butnowpeople havegottenabit
uglyaboutstuffandwouldnotbesurprised ifthiselection season ifpeople areoutwithtape
measures toseehowfartheyardsignisfromtheedgeoftheroad.  Shestated thatpeople should
beabletoputoutareasonable signandthinks thisissuecameupbecause manypeople were
puttinguptheresignswithin theright-of-wayareas, suchasrightnearstopsigns, whichcanbe
asafety issue.  Shesuggested thatinthatcasethereneeds tobesomerulessuchasthatithas
tobea10footsetback ifitisCityright-of-wayandaskediftheycould differentiate between private
property andpublicspace.    

ChairMaddy askedwhypeopleareallowed toputnon-commercial speechsignsonright-of-way
thattheydonotowntheproperty infrontof.    

TheCommission discussed freespeech, public land, andobstructions.   

There was consensus ofthePlanning Commission tosupport the5foot setback with no
caveat.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page10of12

Commissioner Huskins stated thatinthepacket, PublicWorksDirector Brownhadmade
comments about intersections andsetbacks thatwouldbemoreappropriate andaskedifthe5
footsetback would interfere withwhathewasaddressing.      

Planning Director Darling stated that referred tothesafety triangle andlanguage hasbeen
included toaddress thatissue.    

Commissioner Holkernotedthatreading thisCoderelated tothesubstitution clause, wasabit
confusing, butPlanning Director Darling spentsometimewithhertalkingabout it, soshehasa
betterunderstanding ofit, butnotedthatitwasaconfusing concept.    

ChairMaddy notedthatthesubstitution clauseneeds toremain intheCode, buttheCommission
couldattempt tosimplify it.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatthesubstitution clause inthemostrecentdraft issimpler
thanwhatwaspreviously included intheordinance.  Shereadaloudthetrafficvisibility sectionof
theCodetotheCommission andthesubstitution clauseexamples.    

ChairMaddystated thatitappears asthough theCommission isinagreement withthe
amendments presented bystaff.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshewillmakearrangements forapublichearingatthenext
Planning Commission meeting.   

B. Election ofOfficers

Riedel moved, Eggenberger seconded, tore-appoint Chair Maddy tocontinue serving as
Chair in2022.    

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – all.  Motion carried 5/0.  

Eggenberger moved, Maddy seconded, tore-appoint Commissioner Riedel tocontinue
serving asVice-Chair in2022.   

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – Eggenberger, Holker, Huskins, andMaddy.  Motion carried 4/0/1 (Riedel
abstained).   

Commissioner Eggenberger statedhewould liketodiscuss theissuesurrounding theletter
received from Mr. Larsonandtheinstruction theyhadbeengivennottorespond tohim..  He
stated thatwhenpeoplecometothemeetings tospeakandtheyaregiven3minutes tospeak.   
Hestated thatiftheCommission istoldnottorespond whentheysendaletter, hequestions how
residents cancommunicate withtheCommission.  

Planning Director Darling clarified that theissuewasthathesenttheletterandasked fora
response fromallCommissioners which wouldhavebeenanopenmeeting lawviolation.  She
explained thatMr. Larson couldcometoanother Matters fromtheFloorandbringuphispoints
infrontoftheCommission atthattime.    

Commissioner Eggenberger asked about the3minute timelimitandaskedhowthatisregulated
andwhether peoplecanbeallowed tospeakmore thanonce.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page11of12

ChairMaddy stated thatitisuptotheChairandhehasonlyrecently followed the3minute time
limitwhenpeople started pushing theircomments closer tothe20minute mark.  Hestated that
sometimes, hewouldliketohavealittledialogue also, aslongasitdoesnotturnintoacharacter
attack, whichcamecloseatthelastmeeting.   

Planning Director Darling notedthatthe3minute ruleonlyapplies toMatters fromtheFloor.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatheunderstands thepracticality oftherule, butitmade
himwonder howpeoplecanreallydiscuss issueswiththeCommission.    

Council Liaison Siakelexplained thatMayorLabadie sentoutapolltomayors throughout the
Stateaskingabouthowothercitieshandled Matters fromtheFloor.  Shestated thattheaverage
response wasthattheyallowed eachindividual about3minutes, withsomeallowing evenless
time.  Sheexplained thatshethinkstheideaistoallowthemtorunthemeeting inaprofessional
waythatallows theCitytoconduct theirbusiness andbeabletomakedecisions versus turning
itoveracrowdthatismoredisruptive andoftentimesitisthesameargument beingrepeated
overandover.  Shestated thatitisnotthattheCitydoesnotwant these individuals tospeak, but
shefeels thattheCityhasputaprocess inplaceandhasstucktoit, whichmeans everyone is
treated thesameandgetstobeheard.   

Commissioner Riedelnoted thatthePlanning Commissioners arenotstaffatCityHallandshould
notdiscussmatters thatshouldbediscussed withstaff.  Hestated thattheCommission’sjobis
thePlanning Commission meetings andthatshouldbetheir focus.   

Commissioner Eggenberger notedthathehasneverhadadiscussion withanyone aboutthese
kindsofthingsandexplained thathehadjustbeen thinkingabout itbecause ofwhathappened
recently.  Hestated thathecompletely agrees withCommissioner Riedel’sstatement.   

TheCommission discussed hypothetical situations whereCommissioners maybeapproached
forinformation aboutCityCodeorvariances bytheirneighbors orothermembers ofthe
community.    

Planning Director Darling stated that ifresidents askaCodequestion, shewouldaskthatthey
refer themtostafftoensure thereareaccurate answers andcautioned theCommission tobe
careful aboutgivingneighbors apreference towards oneposition oranother priortothemeeting
before theyhavereceived alltheinformation.    

6. OLD BUSINESS - NONE

7. REPORTS

Council Meeting Report

Council Liaison Siakel notedthatatthelastPlanning Commission meeting, Commissioner
Eggenberger hadaskedherabout thefiberopticproject.  Shestated thatshehadspokenwith
CityAdministrator Lerud andfoundoutthatJaguar Communication isnowMetroNet andtheywill
beinstalling fiberbeginning inlatesummer of2022tobecompleted in2023.  Shenotedthatshe
believed theintentwastoonlylayfiberthroughout thecommunities withinShorewood, Excelsior,  
andTonkaBayandtheywillnotbepursuing afranchise agreement withLMCC.  Shereported
onmatters considered andactions takenduring theCouncil’srecentmeetings.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 1, 2022
Page12of12

Planning Director Darling notedthattheCouncil hadalsoapproved thehiringofanewPlanning
Technician, JasonCarlson,  whowillbeginworkattheendofMarch.    

Draft Next Meeting Agenda

Planning Director Darling stated thePublicHearing forthecampaign andnon-commercial speech
signswillbeheldatthenextmeeting aswellasasiteplanamendment fortheredevelopment of
acommercial building.    

8. ADJOURNMENT

Riedel moved, Holker seconded, adjourning thePlanning Commission Meeting ofMarch
1, 2022, at9:10P.M.   
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – all. Motion passed 5/0.  



7B
MEETINGTYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   CUPtoCollocate Antennas onanExisting Monopole
Location:  24283Smithtown Road
Applicant: SMJInternational, LLC. onbehalfofDishWireless.   

Meeting Date:     March14, 2022

Prepared by:    MarieDarling, Planning Director

Review Deadline: May28, 2022

Attachments:    Planning Memorandum fromtheMarch1, 2022Meeting
Resolution

Background:  Seeattached planning memorandum fordetailed background onthisrequest.   
AttheMarch1, 2022meeting, thePlanning Commission unanimously recommended approval
oftheconditional usepermit, subject totheconditions intheattached resolution.    

Summary ofPublic Notice and Testimony:  Noticewaspublished inthecity’sofficial
newspaper andmailed toallproperty ownerswithin500feetoftheproperty atleast10days
priortothePlanning Commission publichearing onMarch1, 2022. Theapplicant andthe
property ownerwerepresent atthemeeting andtheapplicant spoke infavorofthe
application.   

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Theapplication feesareadequate tocover thecostof
processing therequest.  

Recommendation / Action Requested:  StaffandthePlanning Commission recommend
approval oftherequest.    

Proposed motion:  Movetoadopt theattached resolution approving aconditional usepermit
forSMJInternational, LLC. forproperty locatedat24283Smithtown Road, asrecommended
bythePlanning Commission.    

Anyactiononthisrequest would requireasimplemajority.  

Next Steps and Timelines:  Iftheitemisapproved, theapplicant wouldsubmit the
information asrequired intheattached resolution withabuilding permit request.    

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

S:\\Planning\\Planning Files\\Applications\\2022 Cases\\24283 Smithtown DishWireless Antennas\\CAF.docx



BRENDA
4A























RESOLUTION22-026
CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGACONDITIONALUSEPERMIT
FORANANTENNACOLLOCATIONONANEXISTINGMONOPOLEAND

RELATEDEQUIPMENTAT24283SMITHTOWNROAD

WHEREAS, SMJInternational, LLC., onbehalf ofDishWireless, hasapplied toadd
three telecommunication antennas andotherequipment inatriangular arrayonthe
existing monopole andaddrelated ground equipment ontheproperty legally described
as:  

Lot27, Auditor’sSubdivision No. OneHundred Thirty-three (133), Hennepin County,  
Minnesota, described asbeginning atthesoutheast cornerofBlock1, SennAddition;  
thence alongtheeasterly extension ofthesoutherly lineofsaidBlock1adistanceof85
feet; thencenortherly parallel withtheeast lineofsaidBlock1tothenortherly lineof
saidLot27; thencewesterly alongsaidnortherly linetotheeastlineofsaidBlock1;  
thence southerly alongsaideastlinetothepointofbeginning.  

Subject toaleaseagreement datedJanuary 15, 1982andfiledforrecord December 21,  
1982asCounty Recorder Document No4760996 infavorofChicago TitleInsurance
Company, amended byleaseamendment datedJanuary 15, 1982andfiledforrecord
November 8, 1983asCounty Recorder Document No. 4843529; withassignment and
assumption ofthevendee’sinterest insaidleaseinfavorofMinneapolis SMSALimited
Partnership, aDelaware Limited Partnership, datedSeptember 28, 1984andfiledfor
recordApril16, 1985asCounty Recorder Document No. 4985882; and

WHEREAS, theapplicant proposes tocollocate theirequipment onandnear the
existing monopole tower; and

WHEREAS, afterrequired noticeapublichearing washeldandtheapplication
reviewed bythePlanning Commission ataregular meeting heldonMarch1, 2022, the
minutes ofthemeeting areonfileatCityHall; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil considered theapplication atitsregular meeting onMarch
14, 2022, atwhich timethePlanning Director’smemorandum andthePlanning
Commission’srecommendations werereviewed andcomments wereheardbytheCity
Council fromtheApplicant, thepublicandCitystaff; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA FINDS ASFOLLOWS:  

FINDINGSOFFACT

1. Thesubject property islocated inaC -1General Commercial district, which
allows antenna collocations subject totheapproval ofaconditional usepermit.  



2. Theapplicant’sproposal isidentified onplansandmaterials submitted totheCity
onDecember 30, 2021andJanuary 28, 2022.    

CONCLUSIONS

1. TheApplicant’splanshavesatisfied thecriteria ofaconditional usepermit to
collocate antennas under theShorewood CityCode.  

2. TheApplicant’splans indicate thecollocation wouldbecompatible withthe
neighborhood andwouldnottendtodepreciate thearea.  

3. Theapplication wouldnotoverburden thecity’sservice capacity andexisting public
services andstreets.  

4. Based upontheforegoing, theCityCouncil hereby grants totheApplicant a
conditional usepermit tocollocate additional antennas, radio receiving unitsand
related equipment onthetowerandonanewequipment platform within theexisting
fenced areaasshown ontheplanssubmitted December 30, 2021andJanuary 28,  
2022, subject tothefollowing:  

a. Theapplicant maynotproceed withimprovements prior toissuance ofrequired
permits.  

b. Prior toissuance ofpermits, theapplicant shall revise theplansasfollows,  
consistent withcitycode:  
1) Provide athird-partyspecial inspector andeitherstructural drawings

stamped byanengineer orastructural report showing thatthetowercan
support theadditional antennas andequipment.  

2) Theantennas andallequipment installed onthetower shallbepainted or
factory coated tomatch theexisting monopole.  

3) Theground equipment, otherappurtenances andtheicebridge shallbe
factory coated orpainted tomatch theaccessory building.  

c. Theapplicant shallnot install anyoftheantennas orrelated equipment onthe
towerduring osprey nesting seasonorotherwise disturb thenest.      

d. Theapplicant shallprovide 24-houremergency contact information andthe
information shallbekeptcurrent andupdated asnecessary.  

e. Theapplicant shallnotinstall anylightsonthetower (unless required bythe
FAA) orontheground equipment.    

f. Alldisturbance ofthesiteshallberestored topreconstruction condition bythe
endofthegrowing season.    

5. TheCityClerk ishereby authorized anddirected torecordacertified copyofthis
resolution withHennepin County.  

2



ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA
this14thdayofMarch, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

3



8A
MEETING

TYPE
Regular
Meeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  ApprovePlansandAuthorizingBiddingfortheSmithtown
Pond/ShorewoodOaksDrainageProject
CityProjects20-07and20-04

Meeting Date: Monday, March14, 2022
Prepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer
Reviewed by:  LarryBrown, Director ofPublic Works
Attachments:  OverviewMap, ACOEPermitLetter, Resolution

Background:  OnJanuary 25, 2021, theShorewood CityCouncil approved theScoping
Studyandauthorized preparation oftheplans & specifications fortheSmithtown Pond
project.   

TheCityhadpreviously completed theWestern Shorewood Drainage Studyandthe
Smithtown Pondisamajorcomponent oftheoverall study.  Theproposed regional
pond, located at26245 Smithtown Road, provides anopportunity tosignificantly
improve thedrainage inupstream areasbyallowing adequately sized trunkstormsewer
pipesatdepths thathelppropagate drainage through thearea.  Thepondthenprovides
anopportunity tostorethewaterandrelease itataratethat issignificantly reduced
fromthecurrent conditions.  Thiswillreduce theerosion potential tothedownstream
GrantLorenz channel thathasseensignificant erosion, sloughing slopes, andwashouts
inrecent years.  Several othercomponents oftheproject include improving theoutlet
condition fromtheexisting Freeman ParkPond, installing atrailconnection from
Smithtown RoadtotheHCRRA LakeMinnetonka Regional Trail, andtheShorewood
OaksDrainage Improvements.  TheSmithtown Pondwillalsobeanopportunity to
installwaterquality treatment thatwillberequired aspartofthepermitting andapproval
process fortheStrawberry LaneReconstruction andTrailproject, slated for2023. This
helps reduce theneedforadditional rightofwaydirectly adjacent totheStrawberry
Laneroadway corridor.    

Thecityhasacquired allmajorpermits fortheproject including theapproval ofthe
Minnehaha Creek Watershed District andtheArmyCorpsofEngineers. Aspartofthe
permitting process theCitywillneedtopurchase wetland bankcredits tofulfilla
condition ofthepermit.  Staffhasalsobeencoordinating withtheHennepin County
Regional RailAuthority andtheThreeRiversParkDistrict onacostsharing agreement.   
TheHCRRA isactingontheitemattheirMarch8meeting andthecitywilltakecouncil
likelyattheMay9meeting.      

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



FinancialConsiderations: Thisproject hasbeenbudgeted forintheCapital
Improvement Plan (CIP) inyears2021and2022andincludes three itemsfromtheCIP:   

2021Shorewood OaksDrainage       $ 190,000
2022Smithtown Pond/Freeman ParkOutlet   $ 1,942,000
2022Smithtown PondTrail         $ 40,000
TotalBudget        $ 2,172,000

Thecitywillalsoreceive costsharing fromtheHCRRA inanottoexceed amount of
38,680.  TheEngineers Estimates fortheoverall project costis $2,200,000.   

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends thecitycouncil approve the
plansandauthorize bidding theSmithtown Pondproject.      

NextStepsandTimelines:  
Approve PlansandSpecifications/Authorize AdforBid ...........................March14, 2022
OpenBids ...............................................................................................   LateApril2022
Award Construction Contract .........................................................................May9, 2022
BeginConstruction ......................................................................................Summer 2022
Substantial Completion: Shorewood OaksDrainage Improvements............October 2022
Substantial Completion: Entire Project………………………………................March, 2023
FinalCompletion……………………………….....................................................July, 2023













CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-027

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGTHEPLANSANDSPECIFICATIONSAND
AUTHORIZINGBIDDINGFORTHESMITHTOWNPOND/SHOREWOODOAKS

DRAINAGEPROJECT
CITYPROJECT20-07AND20-04

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood (“City”) approved theScoping Studyandauthorized
preparation oftheplansandspecifications fortheSmithtown Pondproject, CityProject
20-07, onJanuary 25, 2021; and

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood (“City”) authorized thepreparation oftheShorewood
OaksDrainage Improvements, CityProject 20-04, onJune22, 2020; and

WHEREAS, theSmithtown PondScoping Studyconfirms thattheexisting flooding
conditions inFreeman Park impact theShorewood OaksDrainage Improvements
project andinorder toremedy willneedtocoordinate andconstruct concurrently with
theSmithtown Pondproject; and

WHEREAS, proposed improvements toSmithtown Pondproject willreduce flowin
downstream Grant Lorenz Channel, provide forimproved drainage intheupstream
watershed, provide improved waterquality forthewatershed, andprovide treatment for
thefutureStrawberry LaneRoadandTrailproject scheduled for2023construction; and

WHEREAS, theproposed improvements fortheSmithtown Pondproject impact
regulated wetlands andstreams, andtofulfill theconditions oftheMinnehaha Creek
Watershed District andtheArmyCorpsofEngineers permits, approve theMayor to
execute wetland bankpurchase agreements asneeded fortheproject; and

WHEREAS, theproject isincluded inthe2021and2022Capital Improvements Plan
andwillbefunded fromtheStormwater Fund; and

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: thattheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approves theFinalPlans & Specifications fortheSmithtown Pondproject and
theShorewood OaksDrainage Improvements Project, authorizes bidding, and
authorizes execution ofwetland bankcredits fortheproejct.  

thADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this14 dayofMarch
2022.  



JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   Redistricting and New Precinct Boundaries 9A
Meeting Date:  Monday, March14, 2022

MEETINGTYPEPrepared by:   Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
RegularMeetingReviewed by:   GregLerud, CityAdministrator

Brenda Pricco, Deputy CityClerk
Attachments:  Resolution

NewPrecinct Map

Redistricting Update:  Redistricting istheprocess ofredrawing theboundaries ofelection
districts andoccurs following thecompletion oftheCensus.  Thepurpose ofredistricting isto
ensure thatthepeopleofeachdistrictareequally represented.  Theprinciple of “OnePerson,  
OneVote”, which isachieved through theredistricting process, hasbeenexpanded overthe
yearstoinclude bothchambers ofstate legislatures, county commissioner districts, municipal
districts, anddistricts inother jurisdictions.  Eachlocalunitofgovernment needs todetermine its
redistricting responsibilities anddevelopaplan.  TheCityofShorewood isresponsible for
redistricting orreestablishing allprecincts afterstateredistricting.  Reestablishing precincts isa
routine process ofverifying existingprecinct boundaries meetlegal requirements andthen
reconfirming thoseboundaries.  Redistricting precincts isrequired whenitisdetermined that
existing precincts donotmeet therequirements inlaw, particularly ifnewlegislative or
congressional districts havesplitexisting precincts.  Thepreferred method formunicipalities is
toidentify pollingplacesanddrawprecincts around pollingplaces.  TheStatesettheLegislative
Boundaries onFebruary 15, 2022.  TheCityBoundaries deadline isMarch29, 2022.    

City Boundary Update:  Hennepin County provided thenecessary redistricting training tocities
andschooldistricts, didtheredrawing and/orreestablishing ofcounty district boundaries, and
provided theredistricting software forcitiestoutilize toredraw orreestablish theirprecinct
boundaries.  TheLegislative District inShorewood wassplitandnowincludes Legislative
Districts 45Aand45B.  Thisnewboundary splitoccurred intheareathatwaspreviously
Shorewood’sPrecinct 4.  Theareaeastoftheboundary thatliesinDistrict 45Bisnowrequired
tobecome itsownprecinct, sinceprecincts mustbearranged sothatnoprecinct liesinmore
thanonelegislative orcongressional district pursuant toStateStatute §204B.14(3)(f).   
Shorewood remains inCongressional District3.    

Citystaffwasresponsible forredrawing thecityprecinct boundaries andestablishing polling
locations.  Theproposed *newcityprecinct boundaries comply withStateStatute §204B.14
andweresubmitted toHennepin CountyonFebruary 23, 2022, andinclude thefollowing:  

Precinct1andPrecinct2werecombined tocreate thenew *Precinct 1withapollingplace
ndlocated within theprecinct boundary ofMinnewashta Church, locatedat26710West62

Street, Shorewood, MN55331.   

Precinct 3andthewestportionofPrecinct 4thatremained inLegislative District 45Awere
combined tocreate thenew *Precinct 2withapolling place located within theprecinct

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



boundary ofShorewood Community & EventCenter, locatedat5735Country ClubRoad,  
Shorewood, MN55331.   

TheeastportionofPrecinct4lyinginLegislative District 45Bwillbecome thenew *Precinct 3
withapollingplace located within theprecinct boundary ofExcelsior Covenant Church, located
at19955 Excelsior Blvd., Shorewood, MN55331.  

Precinct 5, lyingcompletely inCathcart Parkandlocated inCarver County willnowbethenew
Precinct 4andhasundergone noboundary changes butwillratherbereestablished withthe

newprecinct numberonly, withapolling location ofWestwood Community Church, locatedat
3121Westwood Drive, Chanhassen, MN55331.    

Hennepin County willbenotifying allregistered voters intheCityofShorewood withtheirnew
precinct andpolling locations.  

Action Requested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve theResolution
Establishing 2022Precinct andPolling Locations fortheCityofShorewood pursuant toMN
statute §204B.14, following redistricting, asfollows:  

ndPrecinct 1: Minnewashta Church, 26710West62 Street, Shorewood, MN
Precinct2: Shorewood Community & EventCenter, 5735Country ClubRoad, Shorewood, MN
Precinct3: Excelsior Covenant Church, 19955Excelsior Blvd., Shorewood, MN
Precinct 4: Cathcart Park, Westwood Community Church, 3121Westwood Drive, Chanhassen,  
MN

Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
healthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound
financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTIONNO. 22-028

RESOLUTIONESTABLISHINGPRECINCTSANDPOLLINGPLACES

WHEREAS, thelegislature oftheStateofMinnesota hasbeenredistricted; and

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute section 204B.14, subd. 3 (d) requires thatprecinct
boundaries mustbeestablished within60daysofadoption ofstateredistricting plan or
byMarch29, 2022, whichever comes first;  

WHEREAS, theLegislative District wassplit intheCityofShorewood andnowincludes
Legislative Districts 45Aand45B;  

NOW, THEREFOREBEITRESOLVEDthattheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood,  
County ofHennepin, StateofMinnesota hereby establishes theboundaries ofthevoting
precincts andthepolling place locations asfollows:  

ndPrecinct1: MinnewashtaChurch, 26710West62 Street, Shorewood, MN55331
Those islands inthewesterly partofthecity, toinclude Goose Island, Spray Island,  
Shady Island, andthatpartofEnchanted Island thatlieswithin thecitylimitsand; That
portion ofthecitylyingwestofEureka Roadtothewesterly shoreline ofLake
Minnetonka.  

Precinct2: ShorewoodCommunity & EventCenter, 5735CountryClubRd,  
Shorewood, MN55331
Thatportion ofthecitylyingeastofEureka RoadtoMillStreet; Thatportion ofthecity
lyingeastofMillStreetandsouthofStateHighway 7totheeasterly border ofOld
Market Road, Covington Road, andVineHillRoad.    

Precinct3: ExcelsiorCovenantChurch, 19955ExcelsiorBlvd., Shorewood, MN
55331
Thatportion ofthecitylyingeastofOldMarket Road, Covington Roadtotheeasterly
borderofthecity; Thatportion ofthecitylyingnorthofStateHighway 7totheeasterly,  
westerly andnortherly borderofthecity.    

Precinct4: WestwoodCommunityChurch, 3121WestwoodDrive, Chanhassen,  
MN55331

ndThatentireportion ofCathcart Park, lyingsouthof62 StreetWest, westofChurch
RoadandeastofCartway Lanetothepark’ssoutherly border.    

Attached tothisresolution, forillustrative purposes, isamapshowing saidprecincts and
thelocation ofeachpolling place.  



ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILoftheCityofShorewood this14thdayofMarch,  
2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk





CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

9BTitle/Subject: LetterofAgreementwithIPMInstitute
Meeting Date:  March14, 2022 MEETING
Prepared By:  GregLerud, CityAdministrator TYPE

REGULARReviewed By:  LarryBrown, Director ofPublicWorks; JaredShepherd,   
CityAttorney

Attachments:  DraftLetterofAgreement andResolution

Background:  Thecitycouncil reviewed quotes toassist thecityindeveloping an
Integrated PestManagement plananddirected staff toworkwiththeIPMInstitute to
develop acontract orLetterofAgreement.    

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  WhenIpresented theproject costsatthe
February 28meeting, Ifailed toinclude thecostforphaseIwork.  That total isnow
13,055, rather thanthe $11,845dollarsstated intheprevious council memo.  I

apologize forthaterror.  However, thetotalamount isstillalmost $2,000lessthanthe
next lowquote.  Fundswillcome frompublic worksandparksdepartment budgets.   

RecommendedAction:  CitystaffmettheIPMstaff todiscuss theLetterofAgreement
andthecityattorney hasreviewed thedraft.  Staff recommends approval oftheLetterof
Agreement assubmitted byadopting theattached Resolution bysimple majority, with
thecaveatbelow.  

ThedraftLetter fromIPMInstitute arrived lateinthedayagenda itemsweredue, soa
fullreviewoftheLetterwasnotpossible bythetimetheagenda waspublished.  Inthe
event therearechanges tothedraftLetter, staffwillgooverthosechanges indetail
priortocouncil consideration oftheResolution.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA ANDIPMINSTITUTE

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this ____ dayofMarch 2022, byandbetween Cityof
Shorewood, aMinnesota Municipal Corporation based inShorewood, MN (herein referred toas
SHOREWOOD”) andtheIPMInstitute ofNorth America, Inc., anon-profit organization based in

Madison WI (herein referred toas "CONTRACTOR"), and

WITNESSETH:  

WHEREAS, SHOREWOOD andCONTRACTOR share goals toimprove health and
environment inagriculture andcommunities; and,  

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR possesses unmatched experience andexpertise inbuilding market- 
based programs toimprove health andenvironment inagriculture andcommunities widely recognized
throughout theUS, supports theefforts ofSHOREWOOD todevelop anIntegrated PestManagement
Planandwishes toprovide technical expertise and

WHEREAS, SHOREWOOD andCONTRACTOR wishtocollaborate toimprove health and
environment incommunities; and

NOW, THEREFORE, inconsideration ofmutual covenants andobligations setforthbelow,  
theparties agreeasfollows:  

Section 1.  Definitions.  Asused inthisAgreement thefollowing terms shall have thefollowing
meanings:  

a) “SHOREWOOD”: CityofShorewood, represented byGregLerud orhisalternate as
designated inwriting bySHOREWOOD.  

b) “CONTRACTOR”: IPMINSTITUTE, represented byNickSpeckman orhisalternate as
designated inwriting byCONTRACTOR, together withanyandallsubcontractors retained by
CONTRACTOR under termsofthisAgreement inperformance oftheProject.  

c)“Work Product”:  Alldata, documentation, reports, analysis, know-how, inventions,  
developments, works ofauthorship, andinformation, inwhatever form, firstproduced orcreated byorfor
CONTRACTOR asaresultoforrelated totheperformance ofworkortherendition ofservices under this
Agreement; and

d) “Deliverables”:  Reports, notes, images, databases, models, analytical tools, andanyother
descriptive oranalytical material tobedeveloped byCONTRACTOR andfurnished toSHOREWOOD as
evidence ofcompletion ofProject activities; and

e) "Project":  Activities tobecarried outbyCONTRACTOR and/oranyofitssubcontractors
related tothisagreement.  

f)  "Project Period":  Theperiod commencing onthedate thisagreement isexecuted byboth
parties andending atsuch timeasmutually agreed uponbySHOREWOOD andCONTRACTOR.  



g) “Services”:  Anywork, assignment, orsubcontract activity carried outunder termsofthis
Agreement byCONTRACTOR oranyofitssubcontractors.  

Section 2.  WorkToBePerformed.  CONTRACTOR agrees toprovide Services insupport of
theProject andtoincurcosts generally according totheWork Plan (Exhibit A).  CONTRACTOR shall
retain andpayrequired subcontractors fromthefunds provided hereby.  Inperforming allwork and
services andincurring costs hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall exercise its independent judgment andshall
havecontrol over thetime, manner, anddetails ofthework, butshall report toSHOREWOOD subject to
therestrictions andterms contained inthiscontract.  

Section 3.  Nature ofObligation.  CONTRACTOR shall useitsreasonable anddiligent efforts to
perform theworkasdescribed inExhibit A.  However, theparties understand that theProject involves
development ofnovelprocedures, methods, andconcepts andthat there canbenoassurance thatallgoals
oftheProject canbe, orwillbe, met.  CONTRACTOR doesnotwarrant orguarantee anyparticular
results.  

Section 4.  Retention ofSubcontractors.  Selection ofsubcontractors shallbemade by
CONTRACTOR andallsubcontractors shallwork under CONTRACTOR’ sdirection.  However, no
subcontractor shallberetained toperform anyportion oftheactivities without priorwritten approval of
SHOREWOOD.     

Section 5.  Payment andPayment Procedures.  Thepayments bySHOREWOOD to
CONTRACTOR forconsultant services aspertheattached workplanandfeeschedule (Exhibit A) shall
beinthetotalamount of $13,055USdollars (US $13,055), payable asfollows:  

a) CONTRACTOR shall submit payment request aspertheattached workplanand feeschedule
Exhibit A).  Invoice shallbedelivered toSHOREWOOD byemail.  Invoices shallbesent totheCityof

Shorewood, 5755Country ClubDrive, Shorewood, MN55331, (952) 960-7900,  
cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us. TheCitywill remit payment toIPMINSTITUTE, 211SPaterson Street,  
Ste380, Madison, WI53703-4504.  

Section 6.  Intellectual property.  Allwritten orotherwork products generated bytheparties to
thisagreement anddelivered totheotherparty, pursuant tothisagreement, shallbetheproperty ofthe
party generating theproduct. After theconclusion oftheproject, theparties each grant totheother party
theright tocontinue useand/ordevelop materials delivered tothembytheother party.  Thefollowing
provisions shallapply tointellectual property developed byeither partyandmade available toother party
inthecourse ofcarrying outproject activities:  

a) Inthecaseofintellectual property developed byeither partyprior totheproject andmade
available to, orusedtodevelop orcomplete theproject, thedeveloping party shall retain
during andafter theproject theright tousesuchintellectual property forother purposes
without restriction.  

b) Theparties tothisagreement shall retain theright after theconclusion ofthisproject to
continue touseanddevelop theintellectual property provided totheparty bytheother party
during thecourse ofthisproject, including theright tocharge afeeforaccess to, oruseofsaid
intellectual property, withacknowledgement totheother party.  



Section 7.  MINNESOTA GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES ACT.  CONTRACTOR
acknowledges thatitmustcomply withtheMinnesota Government DataPractices Act, Minnesota Statutes
Chapter 13, asitapplies to (1) alldataprovided bytheSHOREWOOD pursuant tothisAgreement, and (2)  
alldata, created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, ordisseminated byCONTRACTOR pursuant
tothisAgreement.  CONTRACTOR issubject toalltheprovisions oftheMinnesota Government Data
Practices Act, including butnot limited tothecivil remedies ofMinnesota Statutes Section 13.08, asifit
wereagovernment entity.  Intheevent CONTRACTOR receives arequest torelease data, CONTRACTOR
must immediately notify SHOREWOOD.  SHOREWOOD willgiveCONTRACTOR instructions
concerning therelease ofthedatatotherequesting party before thedata isreleased.  CONTRACTOR agrees
todefend, indemnify, andholdSHOREWOOD, itsofficials, officers, agents, employees, andvolunteers
harmless fromanyclaims resulting fromCONTRACTOR’ sofficers’, agents’, SHOREWOOD’ s, partners’,  
employees’, volunteers’, assignees’ orsubcontractors’ unlawful disclosure and/oruseofprotected data.  The
termsofthisparagraph shall survive thecancellation ortermination ofthisAgreement.  

Theparties acknowledge thatasaresultoftheproject, eachwill, ormay, bemaking useof, acquiring or
adding toinformation about certain matters andthings which areconsidered bytheCONTRACTOR tobe
trade secrets within themeaning of §13.37, subd. 1 (b).  CONTRACTOR willnotify SHOREWOOD with
respect toanytrade secrete dataandSHOREWOOD shall comply withMinn. Stat. §13.37, subd. 1(b)  
with respect tosuchdata.    

Section 8. Independent Contractors.  CONTRACTOR shallperform theServices asan
independent CONTRACTOR, andnothing contained inthisAgreement shallbeconstrued tocreate or
implyajointventure, partnership, principal-agent, oremployment relationship between theparties.   
Neither party shall takeaction orpermit anyaction tobetaken onitsbehalf which purports tobedone in
thenameoforonbehalf oftheother party andshall havenopower orauthority tobindtheother party to
assume orcreate anyobligation orresponsibility express orimplied ontheother party’sbehalf orinits
name, norshall suchparty represent toanyonethatithassuchpowerorauthority.  

Section 9.  Termination ofAgreement.  
a) Either partymayterminate thisAgreement inwhole orinpart, atanytimebefore thedateof

completion, foranyreason.  Theterminating partyshallnotify theother party inwriting viaelectronic e- 
mailofanytermination.  Theparties muststopwork immediately upon notification oftermination.   
Payments made toeither partyorrecoveries byeither party shallbeinaccordance with thelegal rights
andliabilities oftheparties.    

b) Intheevent thisAgreement isterminated, theparty developing theServices forDeliverables
shallbeentitled toreceive justandequitable compensation foranysatisfactory workcompleted onsuch
Services orDeliverables prior totermination.  

Section 10.  Indemnification Against LossorDamage.  CONTRACTOR shall defend,  
indemnify, andholdSHOREWOOD harmless fromandagainst anyliability, loss, damage orexpense,  
including reasonable attorney fees, which SHOREWOOD mayincurorsustain byreason ofany
intentionally wrongful conduct, breach ofthiscontract byCONTRACTOR.  Ifanysuitshallbefiled
against SHOREWOOD foranyclaimofintentionally wrongful conduct, breachofthiscontract byactsof
CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall defend SHOREWOOD inthematter andindemnify
SHOREWOOD against anymonetary award insaidaction.   

Section 11.  Compliance withLaws.  CONTRACTOR agrees thatover theduration ofandasa
condition ofCONTRACTOR'sduty toperform under thetermsofthisAgreement that itwillbein



compliance withallapplicable lawsandregulations oftheStateofWisconsin.  SHOREWOOD also
agrees tocomply withallapplicable laws.  

Inaddition, CONTRACTOR certifies thatitisnotdelinquent onanyfederal debtandhasnotbeen
debarred from doingbusiness with thefederal government.  

Section 12.  Representations andWarranties ofCONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR represents
andwarrants toCONTRACTOR asfollows:  

a) CONTRACTOR isanon-profit organization inlawful existence under Minnesota law.  This
Agreement hasbeendulyauthorized, isvalidandenforceable inaccordance with itsterms.  

b) Nofurther consent orapproval isnecessary fromitsBoard ofDirectors orother
CONTRACTOR authority asacondition totheperformance ofanyofitsobligations hereunder.  

Section 13.  Representations, Warranties andCovenants ofSHOREWOOD.  SHOREWOOD
represents warrants andcovenants, toCONTRACTOR asfollows:  SHOREWOOD isaMinnesota
municipal corporation.  ThisAgreement hasbeendulyauthorized, isvalidandenforceable inaccordance
with itsterms, andneither theexecution ofthisAgreement norperformance ofthetransactions
contemplated hereby isorwillbecontrary totheprovisions ofanyagreement orundertaking towhich itis
aparty orbywhich itisbound.  

Section 14.  Amendment.  Anamendment tothisAgreement shall bevalid only ifitisinwriting
andapproved byauthorized representatives ofbothparties.  

Section 15.  Survival ofAgreement.  Ifanyportion ofthisAgreement isheldtobeinvalid or
unenforceable, theremainder shallbevalidandenforceable.  

Section 16.  Entire Agreement.  ThisAgreement constitutes theentire Agreement between the
parties with respect tothesubject matter hereof, andtheCONTRACTOR acknowledges thatitisentering
intotheAgreement solelyonthebasisoftheterms andconditions herein contained orreferenced in
Exhibit A, orreferenced inwritten Addendums tothisAgreement andnotinreliance onany
representation, statement, inducement orpromise, whether oralorwritten, notcontained herein.  

Section 17.  Notices.  Allnotices required orpermitted tobedelivered hereunder andall
communications inrespect hereof shall beinwriting andshallbedeemed given when personally
delivered orwhen deposited intheUnited States mails, certified, return receipt requested, firstclass,  
postage prepaid, andaddressed asfollows:  

IftoCONTRACTOR to -   IftoCityofShorewood to -   
NickSpeckman GregLerud
IPMInstitute ofNorth America, Inc.   CityofShorewood
211SPaterson Street, Ste380 5755Country Club Road
Madison, WI53703 Shorewood, MN55331
kadams@ipminstitute. org GLerud@ci.shorewood.mn.us



Section 18.  Governing Law.  ThelawsoftheStateofMinnesota shall govern theinterpretation
andenforcement ofthisAgreement.  

INWITNESS WHEREOF, theparties haveexecuted thisAgreement tobeeffective asofthedate first
above stated.  

IPMINSTITUTE CITYOFSHOREWOOD

NickSpeckman Jennifer Labadie
CEO Mayor

ATTEST

Sandie Thone, CityClerk































RESOLUTION NO. 22-029

STATE OF MINNESOTA
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
CITY OF SHOREWOOD

ARESOLUTION APPROVING ALETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH THE IPM INSTITUTE TO
PREPARE AND ASSIST INPLEMENTING ANINTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT

PROGRAM

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood prepared anddistributed aRequest forQuote (RFQ) to
organizations whocouldassist theCityindeveloping, implementing andmanaging an
Integrated PestManagement (IPM) program; and,  

WHEREAS, threequotes werereceived andtheCityCouncil directed CityStaff toworkwith
staff fromtheIPMInstitute todevelop anagreement orcontract toprovide theservices defined
intheRFQ,  

NOWTHEREFORE BEITRESOLVED bytheShorewood CityCouncil, thattheCityCouncil
approves theattached LetterofAgreement andauthorizes theMayorandCityClerktosignthe
agreement onbehalfoftheCityofShorewood.  

thAdopted this14 dayofMarch, 2022.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:  TreeSaleandOrganics Recycling Updates 10A.1
Meeting Date: Monday, March 14, 2022

MEETING TYPEPrepared by:  JulieMoore, Communications andRecycling Coordinator
RegularReviewed by:  GregLerud, CityAdministrator
Meeting

TreeSale

Thisyear’sannual treesalestarted March1. Thecityisoffering eight treesaspartof
thesalethisyear. Asofthedateofthismemo, onetreeissoldoutandsixtreeshave
hadanadditional order tomeet resident demand. Thetreeswillbedelivered topublic
works thefirstweekofSeptember forpick-upbythepurchaser.   

Several treesoffered thisyearhavebeenusedtofulfill thecityobligation toresidents in
Glen/Amlee/Manitou construction area.   

OrganicsRecycling

Theorganics recycling program offered bythecityusingthegrantdollars from
Hennepin County started March3, 2022. Within thefirstweekoftheprogram, twenty
residents registered. Wewillcontinue tomarket theprogram toresidents awayto
eliminate trashandpossibly givethemtheopportunity toreduce their trashcartsizeand
reduce their trashcosts. Hennepin County estimates that20-30% ofthewastegoing to
landfill/burner couldbeputinorganics recycling.  

Noaction fromcouncil iscurrently needed.  

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublic services, a
healthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound
financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1


	Agenda
	2A Minutes 02-28-22 Work Session
	2B Minutes 02-28-22 Regular Meeting
	2C Verified Claims
	2D Proposal from Davey Resource Group
	5A Service Recognition
	6B Christmas Lake Public Access Ordinance
	7A Minutes 03-01-22 Planning Comm Mtg
	7B CUP to Collocate Antennas at 24283 Smithtown Road
	8A Smithtown Pond/Shorewood Oaks Drainage Project
	9A Redistricting and New Precin
	9B Letter of Agreement with IPM Institute
	10A.1 Tree Sale and Organics Recycling



